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Form Of Proxy

Ifwee:

Of (full address): o

Being a Member of TRG PAKISTAN LIMITED, hereby appoint:

Of (full address): E—

Or falling him:
Of (full address):

As my/our praxy to attend the vote for me and on my behalf at the Seventh Annual General Meeting of the
Company ta be held on Becember 01, 2009 and at any adjournment thereof.

Signed this _ &
(Dray) (Date, month, year)

Falio Number/CDC No.

MNumbers of shares held:

over Revenua

E Signature
' Stamp of Rs 5 |

e — LR R

Signatures and addresses of witnesses Signatures and addresses of witnesses
VWitness | VWitness 2
Signature Signature
Mame MName
NIC No. NIC No.
Address Address
Motes:

|. A Member entitied to attend, speak, and vote ac the meeting is entitled to appoint 2 proxy to attend, speak, and vote for him/her.
A proxy need not be a member of the Company.

2. The instrument appointing a proxy shall be in writing under the hand of the appointer or of his atarney duly authorized in writing,
if the appointer is a corporation, under its common seal or the hand of an officer or attorney duly authorized

3. The instrument appointing, a proxy and the power of attorney, or ether autherity undar which it is signed, or a notarized copy
of such power of attorney must be deposited at the registered office of the Company at lease 48 hours before the ume of meetng.

4 An individual Beneficial Cwner of the Central Depository Committee, entitled to attend and vote at this meecing must bring
histher original National Identty Card with him/her to prove hisfher identity, and in case of proxy, must enclose an attested copy
of histher National identity Card. The representative of corporate entity, shall submit Board of Directors’ rasolution/power of
attorney with specimen signature (unless it has been provided earlier} along with the proxy form of the Company.



E CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF TH
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TRG PAKISTAN LTD.

39. Capital Risk Management

The holding company’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the company's ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

I order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

40. Date of Authorisation and corresponding figures

40.1 Convertable preference shares have been classified as a current hability, accordingly, the corresponding amount has been reclassified.

40.2 These cansolidated financial statements were authorised for 1ssue on Octaber 30, 2009 by the Board of Directors of the holding company.
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37. Transactions with Related Parties

Related parties of the Group comprises of associated undertakings, staff retirement funds, directors and key management personnel. The balances
due fram and te related parties of the Group have been disclesed in the respective notes to the consolidated financial statements, Material
transactions with related parties, other than remuneration and benefits to the directors and key management personnel under the rerms of their
employment {as disclosed in note 35), are given below.

2009 2008

{Rupees in thousand)

Zia Chishti - CEO of the holding company
Interest expense 16,853

Trakker (Private) Lirmted - (common directorship)

Revenue 18,215
Yervices acquired -
Balance receivable - current account 6,684

Balance payable - current account .

The status of the outstanding balances with related parties as at June 30, 2009 is disclosed in notes %, 13, 17, 20 and 2.

37.1 The abeve transaction are carried out at mutually agreed terms.

38. Subsequent Event

38.1 Subsequent to the fiscal year end the Company’s subsidiary, TRG Holdings LLC incorporated a whaolly owned subsidiary called TRG Field
Solutions (TRG FS) to assume the operations of the Door to Door business from TRG Customer Solutions, by virtue of 2 Contribution
Agreement. As per the agreement, TRG agreed to transfer 213 shares of Series A Preferred Stock of TRG (5 1o TRG FS. TRG 5 issued common
stock for an equivalent amount to TRG Holdings, LLC as consideration for the preferred stock. In addition, subsequent to the fiscal year
end. TRG CS sold the assets and contributed the liabilities of its Field 3olutions business unit to TRG FS. The net assets of the business unit
were sold in exchange for the retirement of the 213 shares of preferred stock owned by TRG FS in TRG {S. The value of the preferred stock
retired was equal to the net asset value of the assets sold and liabilities transferred on the transler date.

381 Subsequent to the year end the group's wholly owned subsidiary, TRG SATMAP (nc (formerly known as Patek Capiial Inc}, entered into a
Trial Agreement with Charter Communications Operating, LLL whereby Charter agreed to advance Rs [01.5 millon (USD .25 million} to
TRG SATMAP against future revenue earned from the Company's SATMAP technology. The advance is guaranteed by another subsidiary,
TRG Healtheare Ing in the event of non-performance by TRG SATMAR.

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009
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Other segment information

Segment assets

segment liabilities

Capital expenditures
Tangible fixed assets
Intangible assets

Depreciation / amortisation

Revenue

Inter-segment revenue
Revenue from services to external customers

Total revenue

Result

Seament results

Minority interest

Income taxes

Nei loss

Other segiment information

Segment assets

Segment liabifities

Capital expenditures
Tangible fixed assets

(ntangible assets

Depreciation / amortisation

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

- 2009 |
North Adjustments/
Asia Africa  America Europe Eliminations Group

cevvrresnann - (RUpees in thousand).......oc.coocvn..

855,661 44,134 35,604,921 143370 (30,393 583) 6,256,504

48L2%1 74350 (5207402 213298 (9,955,685 121647

31,093 1,991 330,716 1,077 - 364 877

81750 8,701 318,189 20,298 19583 509,617

2008
North Adjustments/
Asia Africa  America Europe Eliminations Group

sineeseneno(RUpees in thousand)..............

1ST425 49300 3602732 - {4.419,477)
73593 18,093 8197457 551370 - 8841513

831,018 67413 11810489 552370 {(4.41%.477) 8841513

(829.730))  (41584) (1918,143) (158212) 2629536 (2.118.093)
. : - : 566,030
: : i : S TATE

(L63730))  (A1544) (L9I8,143) (1SB212) 2629536 (1,530,900

L0019 31845 20,012.200 27260 (17.97,107) 6314977

403.6[![!_ 131,429 6842927 174582 (3.058.832) 4,593,706

55433 1461 539453 36084 (24743) 620388

-—

74l . 2916 - - 2265

107,347 138 252,113 21,661 - 389,044

—r— P
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35 Remuneration of Chief Executive, Directors and Executives

The aggregate amount charged in the consolidated financial statements for remuneration, including all berefits to the chief executive, directors
and executives of the Group is as follows:

1009 N 1008
Chief Chief
Executive Executives Total Executive Executives Total
cerreneeememesfRUPEES in thousand)......ccocainnenee.
Managerial remuneration note 35.1 - 59176,782 5,976,782
Commission / bonus - 1,174,141 |,174,14l
House rent 9,002 i4 831 33,834
Medical allowance . 2.588 2,588
Insurance - 50,197 50,197
Retirement benefits . 317714 32,714
Share hased payments 19.638 162,063 \81.701
Other benefits and allowances - 66,740 66,740
Tatal 18,640 1,490,099 15i8,7139
Number of persons I 3,674 3,675

351 No managerial remuneration was paid to the chief executive during the year.
352 No fees for attending meetings or any other remuneration was paid to the directors of the holding company during the year.

353 Certain executives are provided with free use of Group maintained cars.

36. Segment information

Far financial reporting purposes the Group has identified the following major geographical segments as the Group's risks and rate of return
are affected predominantly by the fact that it operates in different gengraphical areas with different economic and political envirenments. These
segments are the basis on which the Group has identifies its primary segment information.

1009
North Adjustments/
Asia Africa America Europe Eliminations Group
cee(Rupees in thousand).........ieeniinnan

Revenue
Inter-segment revenue 752 457 023460 3,185,643 - (4,030,460)
Reveriue from services to external customers 261,828 23828 10396535 464980 - N4
Total revenue 014285 116188 13588 464980 (4030460 1114717
Result
Segment results {13.199)  (16,374) 531342  (212,556) (1.018,543} (1,792.216)
Mingrity interest - 150,118 - |50,118
Income taxes (16,000} - (108,185) - - (124,185)
Net loss (29,199)  (16,576) (489, 409) (212,556) (1,018,543} (1.766,283)
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NOTES TQO AND FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

The ageing of trade debtors which were past due as at year end is as follows:

Dues 31 to 60 days

Dues 61 to 20 days

Dues 21 to |80 days

Dues over |80 days

Less: Provision for doubtful debts

The company does not hold any collateral against these assets.

Finzncial assets do not contain any impaired or non-performing assets.

Liquidity risk

2009

TRG PAKISTAN LTD.

1008

(Rupees in thousand)

155,293
66,714
52,699
10,900

(82.681)

202,925

Liguidity risk is the risk that an entity wil! encounter difficulties in meeting obligations asseciated with financial liabilities. Prudent fiquidity
risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash, the availability of funding through an adequate amount of commicted credis facilities
and the ability to close cut market positions. The management believes that it will be able to fulfill its financial ehligations from the

group's future cashflows. A maturity analysis of financial liabilities is as foliows:

Financial liabilities in accordance with their contractual maturities are presented below:

Total Less Between Between

contractual than lto 2 1tos

cash flows | year years years

Long term finances 516,797 971337 57.612 361,648
Convertible preference shares 2,454,000 2,436,000

Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease 49,207 33,239 9310 6,658
Trade and other payables 1,835,132 1,835,132
Short term borrowings 953,675 953,675
Accrued markup on short term borrowings 66,137 66,137

5,856,948 5421,524 368.506

56,921
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

34.2.3 Credit risk

Credit risk represents the accounting foss that would be recognised at the reparting date if counter partes fail completely to
perform as contracted.

Credit risk arises from cash equivalents, deposits with banks, as wel| as credit exposures to customers and other counterparties
which include trade deposits and other receivables. Out of the total financial assets, those that are subject 1o credin risk amaunt
to Rs 2,557.280 million (2008: Rs 2,868.824 millicn).

2009 2008

Credit rating wise breakup of bank balances: (Rupees in thousand)

Government guaranteed 174,296
AA 25,947
Ak- g
A-1 + 3,561
A- 34
A+ 14.090
4 3.295
A- 17
BEB -+ 33.917
Non-rated 519
316,385

The maximum exposure to credit risk as at June 30, 2009, along with comparative is tabulated below:

Financial assets

Long term investments 2124
Long term loans 636
Leng term deposits 59,260
Trade debts 1,773,933
Loans and advances 50,298
Short term deposits 260,057
Interest / profit accrued 11,997
Other receivables 83,130
Balances with banks 316,385
2557820

The group has the Jollowing exposure ta concentration of credit risk with clients representing greater than S % of the consolidated
reyenue or receivable balances:

Revenue Account Receivable
Amount Amount
(Rs 000s) % of Total  (Rs 000s) % of Total
Clienc | 3934326 35% 513,103 2 B%
{lient 7 1,291,374 I 2% 207 79} 'l %G
Chent 3 374,064 1% 104,744 5%
Client 4 325,759 I 98,171 5%

5,915,514 53% 920,809 49%
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34. Financial Instruments And Related Disclosures

34 .1 Financial risk management

The group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including interest rate nisk and currency risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk.

Financial instruments by category are as follows: 1009 2008

(Rupees in thousand)

Financial Assets - Loans and receivables

Leng term investments 2,124
Leng term loans 636
Leng term deposits 59,260
Trade debts 1,773,933
Loans and advances 50,2%8
Short term deposits 260,057
Interest / profit accrued 11,997
Other receivables 83,130
Cash and bank balances 321,112
1,562,547
Financial Liabilities at amartised cost
Lang term finances 514,998
Convertible preference shares 2,436,050
Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease 44 344
Trade and other payables i,835,132
S$hort term borrowings 809,445
Accrued markup en short term borrowings b, 137
5,706,276

Risks managed and measured by the group are explained below:
34.2 Market nsk
34.2.1 Interest / mark-up rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows from a financial instrument will fluctuate due ta changes in
markat interest rates.

At June 30, 2009, if interest rates on linancial assets and liabilities, having variable rates, had been 100 basis points higher/lower
with all ather variables held constant, loss after taxation for the year would have been higher/lawer by Rs 10.194 million (2008:
Rs 7.36% million}.

34.2.2 Currency risk

Currency risk arises mainly where receivables and payables exist due to transactions entered into foreign currencies. The group

primarily has foreign currency exposures in United States Dollar {USD), however the group has not hedged its foreign currency
exposures, as the group believes that foreign currency exposure is not significant to the group's financial position and performance.

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED fUNE 30, 2009
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¢ TRG PAKISTAN LTD.

Note 2009 2008

(Rupees in thousand)

32. Loss per share

Net loss for the year {attributable to shareholders of che helding company) (1,766,283
{Shares)

Weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year 385,390,100
 (Rupees)

Basic lass per share (4.58)

32.1 There 1s no dilution effect of the potential ordinary shares on the Group's loss per share as such potential ordinary shares will not
increase the loss per share upon their conversion to ordinary shares.

NOTES 10 Amu runmiry rAKT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

MWet cash used in operations

33. Cash Utilised in Operations Note 2009 2008
{Rupees in thousand}
Net loss before tax and minority interest for the year (F,732,058)
Adjustments for: _
i
Depreciation 359,558 |
Amaortisation 150,059
Loss on forward contract 11,449
{Reversal)/Provision for had debts (359
Exchange loss / (gain) 17,339
Retirement benefit plan related changes (non-cash) &l7
Impairment charge 27.407
Mark up / interest on borrowings / leases / convertible preference shares 266,868
Return on bank halances / advances (3,423)
Employee stack eptions plan expense 181,701
Gain on deemed disposal -
Loss on disposal of fixed assets / write-offs 24 485
Other provisions and non cash expenses
Gain on sale of asset held for sale -
~_Lp3s.nol
Operating loss before working capital changas (696,955)
(Increase) / decrease in current assets
Trade debts 596,596
Advances, deposits, prepayments and other receivables 641,467
Stock-in-trade (357}
1,237,706
Increase / (decrease} in current liabilities {65L52ﬂ_|
Other current liabilities (651527
110,776
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009
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Note 2009 1008
(Rupees in thousand)

28. Other Charges

Loss on disposal of fixed assets / write-offs 24,485
Exchange loss 17.339
Subsidiary restructuring costs 49939
Impairment charge 21,407
Bad debt expense / write-offs / provisions - net |2.1 -
Lass on {orward contract 28.1 11,449
Worker's Welfare Fund 15,639
Others 10,341

156,599

28.1 TRGIL entered into a foreign exchange forward contract te minimise the effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash flows
denominated in Philippine Pese’s in anticipation of the operating cost and investment requirements for the expected surge in
the work performed by its Phelippine subsidiary, TRG Philippines Inc. This agreement has maturity upto December 2009, The
hedge expense represents the loss incurred on fair value calculation of the afarementioned hedge arrangsment.

Note 2009 1008
(Rupees in thousand)

29. Finance Costs

Mark up on borrowings |72 694

Finance charges on convertible preference shares 18.9 64,659 foE

Finance charges on leased assets 2 6483 LT

Bank charges 16,852 H
266,868 L

3C. Distribution to Minority shareholders of indirec
subsidiaries in excess of their interest

During the year two {indirect) subsidiaries of the Group made distributions to shareholders in the form of dividend. As the distributions
made were in excess of the carrying amount of the minority interest, the excess has been taken to profit and loss account in
accordance with the Group's policy for transactions with minority interests.

3i. Taxation

Current - for the year 11.%30
Deferred I 112,255 SETEE
(24,185 pR at
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Note 2009 2008
27. Administrative and General Expenses et I e
Salaries, wages and other employee costs 2,057 405
Communication |187.472
Rent 400,899
Advertisement and marketing 32,870
Amaortisation L. 109,555
Depreciation 6.3 103,005
Printing and stationery 23,697
Travelling, transportation and conveyance 136,301
Htlities {electricity, gas and water) 44 181
Insurance 53,424
Legal and professional charges 107,550
Auditors remuneration 1.1 91.314
Repairs and maintenance 31,835
Consultancy 252,127
Operating lease rentals -
Donation -
Other raxes -
Licenses and fees 24 389
Facilities mamntenance and office supplies 19.004
Miscellaneous 49 303
3,130,933
1.1 Auditers' remuneration
27.1.1 5,250
Holding company s auditors 27.1.2 90,685
Subsidiaries’ auditors |.379
Qut of pocket expenses 97.314
27.1.1 The holding company's auditors
- Annual audit fee - for the helding campany |, 10
- Annual audit fee - for indirect subsidiaries 1,150
- Half yearly review 400
- Audit of conselidared financial statements 2,500
- Other certifications 100
5,250
27_1.2 Auditors of direct and indirect subsidiaries
- Annual avdis fee 84,455
- Taxation services and other certifications 6,230
90,685

FOR THE YEAR ENDED |UNE 30, 2009
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

25.1 A summary of the status of the TRGIL's scock option plan as of June 30, 2009 and changes during the year then ended is presented

below:
Weighted
average
exercise price
Shares {(USD)

July 1, 2008 36,797,605

Granted 1,450,000

Forfeited or expired (6,445,961)

June 30, 2009 31,801,644

The number of options exercisable at june 30, 2009 was 26,888,456 (June 30, 2008: 20,944 454).
Tre Group has applied the Black-Scholes Option pricing methodology utilising the assumptions identified below:
Strike price - USD 1.12 set by the Board of Directors of TRGIL to be equivalent to the entry price of external chird party investors.
- Share price or fair value of shares to be the equivalent USD price of each TRGIL's ordinary shares.
- Yolaulity assumptions as determined by the stock of the holding company on its historical trands.
5 year risk free rate (Nominal US Treasury) ranging from 2.35% to 4.9%.
- Expected term of 6 years.

Lompensation expense based on the fair value of options (determined using the option pricing model) at the date of granc for the
year amounted o Rs [81.701 million (2008: Rs 229.129) with a resulting increase in minerity interest by the same amgunt.

Note 2009 2008

(Rupees in thousand)

26. Other Operating income

Return on bank balances 3.367
Gain on sale of asset held for sale
Interest income on advances 54

Exchange gain
Gain on deemed disposal z
Reversal of bad debt expense 12.1 959

Gain on settlement of Escrow account 35,440
Other income 15517
55,359

TRG PAKISTAN LTD.
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2413 Operating leases

Some of the group companies lease computer equipment, software, office facilities and furniture and hxtures under
operating lease arrangements some of which contain renewal options and escalation clauses for operating expenses and
inflation. Rent expense is recognized on a straight-line basis over the life of the lease term, Future mimimum lease
payments under operating |eases for years ending subsequent to June 30, 2009 are as follows:

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

IV F i . .

Facilities maintenance and office supplies
Miscellaneous

2009 2008
Note {Rupees in thousand)
Within one year 197,959
After one year but not more than five years 511,44%
After five years 196,113
815,521
24.2.4 (Capital commictments by the Group at the balance sheet date are as follows:
Within one year 20,179
After one year but not more than five years 16,240
After five years 4,060
40,479
25. Cost of Service Delivery

Material consumed 19.445
Salaries and other employee costs 6,848 344
Employee stock options plan expense 15.1 181,701
Communication 648,699
Offrce rent 125,3%6
Amortisation L 40,504
Depreciation 6.3 15:;;

Dperating lease rentals '
Insurance Iﬁiijgg
Utthities (electriaity, gas and water) 5‘43 3
Repairs and maintenance IS?‘ﬁSI
Travelling, transportation and conveyance 3l '[Il'.'l 4
Printing, postage and stationary ?3' <7
Advertising and marketing 5‘355
Licenses and fees 91 881

4,015

8,780,186
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24.1.6 In March 2006 Reese Brothers, inc {"RBI"), which was acquired by TRG Customer Solutions, Inc. during the year ended
June 30, 2907, filed a claim against the United States Postal Service (“USPS") challenging the constitutionality ol
“refationship test cooperative mailing regulations” promulgated by the USPS and damages in the nature of overpayments
for postal charges, lost business, and other injuries. In June 2006, the USPS filed a counterclaim and third-parry complaint
joining Reese Teleservices, Inc. (“RTI™) as a third-party defendant under a theory of “successor-in-interest™ status to
RBI. The USPS seeks to hold RTI liable for an unpaid debt allegedly owed by RBI in the amount of approximately Rs
292.320 million (USD 3.6 million) plus interest. RTI intends to vigorously defend the “successor-in-interest” status and
any claim by the USPS that RT| is liable for any alleged debts of RBL.  An answer ta third-party complaint has been filed,

vigorously denying “successar-in-interest” status and any claim by the USPS that RTI is hable for any alleged debts of
REI.

24.1.7 In January 2008, Schneider Ruanski Enterprises filed suit against, among others, Stratasoft, Inc_ and seeks recovery fer
damages in the amount of Rs 44.660 million {USD 550.000). On February 19, 2008, Stratasoft, Inc. filed a motion to
dismiss which has been fully briefed by all parties. The motion to dismiss was granted, however an amended complaint
was filed. An additional motion to dismiss has been filed and is pending ruling by the court.

24.1.8 In March 2007, Synnex Carporation sued Stratasoft, Inc. for damages in the amount of approximately Rs 13.723 million
(USD 16%,000). The Company plans te vigerously defend its position against damages.

24.2 Commitments

24 2.1 Rent commitments by the Group at the balance sheet date are as follows:

2009 2008
{Rupees in thousand)

Within one year 101,342

After ane year but not more than five years 246,398

After five years 6,202
408,962

24.2.2 The Lompany’s TRG Customer Solutions subsidiary (TRG (5} has a telecommunication service commitment requiring
minimum usage of Rs 43.848 million (USD 540,000) in annuai services. This commitment arrangement has terms
extending througn fuly 20%0. To date, TRG (5 has satisfied these minimum usage commitmenis due since July 2009.

TRG €5 had a relecommunication service commitment frem May 2006 1o May 2008 requiring mimmum usage of 6.090
million (USD 75.000} Rs 73.080 million per month (U5D 900,000 per year). TRG {5 has not satisfied some of these
commitment requirements, potentially be liable for less than Rs 4.060 m:llion (USD 58,000) in commitment shortfall
charges.

TRG €5 is also subject to early termination previsions in certain telecommunications contracts which, if enforced by
the telecommunications providers, weuld subject the TRG (S to early termination fees. To date, these early termination
pravisions have either (1) not been triggered by the TRG (5 or, (2) if triggered, had some of the related fees waived
by the telecommunications providers.
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24. Contingencies and Commitments

14.] Contingencies

The Company and its subsidiaries are subject to lawsuits and ¢laims filed in the normal course of business. Management does
nat believe that the outcome of any of the proceedings will have a marterial adverse effect on the Company’s business results
of operatiens, liquidity or financial condition.

The significant claims or legal proceedings against the Group are as follows:

24.1.1 In February 2008, Blasiar Inc dba Alert Communications (&lert) filed swit against its former president, Mr. Gary Blasiar.
The Company alleges that. while president of Alert, Mr. Blasiar improperly misdirected Alert's funds to pay off unsecured,
juniar loans to his family members, while causing Alert to default on a higher rate senior obligatian, to Alert s detriment.

Gary Blasiar and the Blasiar Irrevocable Trust filed a cross-complaint against Alert, TRG Holdings, LLC and Zia Chishti,
which was {ater amended by adding The Resource Group International Ltd. Plaintiff has since agreed to dismiss Mr.
Chishti from the cross complaint. The cross complaint generally alleges that the cross-defendants breached the terms
of his employment by failing to reimburse him for expenses he incurred during his empleyment, wrongfully threatened
him with criminal prosecution if he failed to return mongy to Alert, improperly diverted money from Alert, and failed
to pay money owing an a promissery note he held as well as being in default of a2 promissery note held by the trust. He
seeks damages in excess of Rs 81.2 million (USD | millien) plus punitive damages and attorneys' lees.

24.1.2 A vendor of TRGCS alleges chac TRGCS has failed te pay an outstanding balance of approxsmately Rs 15.266 million (USD
|88,000) due for goods sold to it on credit. Relief saught includes the claimed balance of Rs 15.266 million (USD 188,000)
Interest, costs and attorneys’ lees. TRGCS and the vendor have reached a tentative settlement of Rs 15.266 million {HSD
188,000} to be paid in installments over a period of six months and are in the process of formalizing the settlement
agreement; the Company has accrued for this settlement amount.

14.1.3 In March 2009 the landlord of a building leased by TRGCS alleged that TRGCS has failed to pay back rent (fixed rent and
additional rent), and is respansible for the accelerated payment of future fixed rent and additional rent, of approximately
Rs 15.834 million (USD 195,000}, The parties have tentatively reached a settlement involving the payment by TRGES
of Rs 15.428 million (USD 190,000) to the landiord over the next tan months, the Cempany has accrued for this settlement.

24.1.4 A former employee of TRGCS seeks judgment for approximately Rs 12.992 million (USD 160,000) plus costs and attorneys’
fees for breach of contract; evertime compensation; waiting time penalties paid time off and statutory penalues. The
parties have reached a tentative settlement of Rs 7.917 million (USD 97,500) to be paid in installments over a period
of stx months and are in the process of formalizing the settlement agreement. The Company has accrued for this setdement
amount.

24.1.5 A fermer employee of TRG filed suit against TRG alleging breach of centract. The Company has an isurance policy which
covers this suit. A final settlement between all parties and the putative class has been reached, and was preliminardy

approved by the Court. Approval of the settlement will require the Company to pay a maxtmum of Ry 4.060 million
(USD 50,000) over a decreased nsurance deductible of Rs 4.060 million (USD 50,000},

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009
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The borrowers are charged an interest rate of one month LIBOR plus 6% (subject to a floor of 7%) on ail advances. In addition
the borrewers discount each receivable amount ynder the arrangement by 0.70%. The discount increases if a receivable is
outstanding for more than 30 days.

On May 8, 2009 TRG Customer Solutions Inc., and i$ky Inc., (the borrowers) repaid all amounts due under the receivables backed
warking capital line of credit with a commercial bank wheraby each of the borrowers could draw up to 80% of the eligible
receivables for working capital purposes.

Under the aforementioned arrangement, the borrowers had the facility to draw up 10 80% of their eligible receivables placed
as coliateral and 50% of their unbilled receivables at any point in time subject to a maximum of Rs 851.250 million (USD 12.5
million). The bank had defined certain criteria for what constitutes eligible receivables and the borrowers are subject to certain
covenants on financial performance including mutually determined earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortisation
(EBITDA) targets and fixed charge coverage ratios to ensure continued access to the faality.

The borrowers were to repay each advance at the earliest of: (a) the date on which payment was received of the financed receivable
with respect to which the advance was made, (b) the date on which the financed receivable was no longer an eligible account,
{¢) the date on which any adjustment was asserted to the financed receivable, (d) the date on which there was a breach of any
warranty of representation as set forth in the agreement, or (e) the maturity date.

The arrangement, initially entered into in 2005, had been subject to a series of modifications and amendments. As at July |,
2007, the agreement was functioning under its | Ith amendment. During the previous years, there were modifications to the
agreement in December 2007 (12th madification), March 2008 (13th madification) and June 2008 (14th medification) whereby
the bank waived the borrowers non compliance with certain financial covenants. The interest rate as of june 30, 2008 was USA
prime rate plus 1.25% (effectively 6.25%).

The facility was formally extended by the bank during December 2008 and a waiver of past financizl covenant viokations was
received. In addition, a general release from all financial covenants was received in December 2008 (15th modification).

23.1 TRG Insurance Solutions Inc., has a revolving line of credit with a commercial bank for approximately Rs 79.632 million (USD
780,685} and Rs 27.240 million (USD 400,000) as ac June 30, 2009 and 2008 respectively, This line is collateralised by Rs
105.885 milbon (USD 1.304 miilion) and Rs 74.784 million {USD 1.098 million) of TRG Insurance Soludens' accounts receivable
at June 30, 2009 and 2008 respectively. The interest rate to be applied to any unpaid balance is at a rate of USA prime rate plus
|% and will under no circumstances be less than 6% or greater than 8% per annum, The lean has a maturity date of
November |, 2009. Advance on line of credit are secured by assets of TRG Insurance Solutions Inc.

213.3 In 2009 TRG Europe {TRG EU) entered into a financing arrangement with Lloyds Trust TSB whereby it agreed to seif its accounts
receivable with recourse to Lloyds TSB. The agreement allows for advances of up to 85% of eligible accounts receivable up to a
maximuym of GBP 300,000 at a rate of interest of the greacer of 2.8% above Base Rate or 6% with a surcharge of 1.5% for
accounts receivable balances over 90 days, subject te a monthly minimum fee of GBP 1,400,

23.4 On April 7, 2009, Digital Globe Services, LLC entered into a financing arrangement with Prestige Capital Corporation (Prestige)
whereby it agreed ta sel| its accounts receivable with recourse to Prestige, The thirteen month agreement with Prestige allows
for advances of up to 73% of billed accounts receivables and 70% of unbilled accounts receivables for total advances of up 1o
Rs 243.60 million (USD 3 millson). After the initial thirteen month periad the term of the arrangement will antomatically extend
for one year period unless either party provides 60 days written notice of cancellation. The receivables are sold at a discount
against the face value of the receivables ranging from 1.875% for receivable balances settled within 30 days to 5.265% for
balances paid by clients between B0 and 90 days from invoice date. In addition, the discount is increased by 1% for each ten-
day period beyond 90 days that an invoice remains outstanding and a further 0.25% if the total accounts recervable sold 1o
Prestige in a given month are Jess than Rs 81.200 million (USD | million).
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2l. Long Term Advances From Customers

This includes an advance received from Charter Communications against future billings of Rs 101.500 million {USD i.25 millien)
received 100% owned subsidiary of the Group, Digital Globe Services LLC (DGS). On |une 19, 2009 the DGS entered into a Marketing
Services Apreement with third party customer, Charter Communicatiens Operating LLC whereby DGS received Rs 101.500 milfion (USD
I.25 million) as deposit for the continued provision of services te Charter Communications Qperating LLC. The deposit 15 repayable
after 24 months and does not carry any interest. The repayment of the deposit is guaranteed by another 100% owned subsidiary for

the group, TRG Healtheare, Inc. Subsequent to the 24 manth period the advance may not be repaid bui may be used to cover
commissions earned through the Charter agreement. The deposit is repayable in 30 days in the event there is a material breach of
contract by 63 against the pravision of services pursuant to the Marketing Services Agreement.

Note 1009 2008
2). Trade and Other Payables (Rilpess in thmusare)
Trade creditors 180,220
Accrued expenses 1,054,912
Advance payments by customers 51.627
Payable 1o employee defined contribution plans 14,868
Value added tax payable by indirect subsidiaries 51,350
Worker's Welfare Fund payable 15,639
Unclaimed dividend 277
1,979,593
23. Short Term Borrowings
Financial institution - secured
Advances under financing agreement (TRG Customer Sclutions, Inc.) 23 680,979
Advances under financing agreement (iSky, Inc.) 131 13,003
Revolving hine of credit (TRG Insurance Solutions Inc.) 13.2 19,632
Advances under financing agreement (TRG Europe Plc} 23.3 32,939
Advances under financing agreement (Digital Globe Services Inc. ) 3.4 3,112
809,665

3.1 On May 8, 2009 TRG Customer Solutions, Inc., TRG Customer Solutions {Canada), Inc. (TRG C$) and, TRGisky, Inc., (collectively
'the borrawers'), entered into a financing arrangement whereby they agreed to sell their accounts receivable with recourse to
FLC, LLL d/b/a First Growth Capital (First Capital), The one-year agreement with First Capital allows for advances of up to a
total of Rs 1,624 million (USD 20 millien) to the parties in the arrangement and requires the parties to offer a minimum of Rs
487.20 million {(USD & million) billed accounts per month. The arrangement automatically renews after the one year period
for additional one year periods unless either of the parties provides 60 days written notice of intent not to renew. Failure to
meet the minimum results in additional fees. The initial funding received by the borrewers under this arrangement was used
to repay the borrowers prior line of credit.

Under the terms of the agreement, First Capital agreed to advance up to 85% of the face value of all accounts receivables
generated by the borrowers. In addition, TRG (5 is able te barrow up to Rs 243.60 million (USD 3 million) against services that
have been performed but not yet billed te customers. The agreement requires TRG (5 to maintain a minimum tangible net worth
of Rs 324.80 million (15D 4 million) and iSky to maintain a tangible net worth of Rs 406.0 million (USD 5 millien}. For the .
year-ended June 30, 2009 this covenant has been met. The agreement also required the borrowers to provide audited financial
statements by September 30, 2009. The Company failed to meet this covenant and received a waiver to this covenant provided
that the financial statements are provided by October 16, 2009, FLC has been granted a general security interest in consideration
of this agreement.
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20. Retirement Benefit Obligation

TRG Philippines Inc., operates an un-funded defined benefit plan for qualifying employees. Under the plan, the employees are entitled

to retirement benefits equivalent to B5% of final salary for every year of service on attainment of a retirement age of 60 years angd
completion of at feast five years of previous credited service. No other post-retirement benefits are provided to these employees. The
most recent actuarial valuations of the present value of the defined benefit obligation was carried out at December 3|, 2008, The
present value of the defined benefit obligation, and the related current service cost and past service cost, were measured using the

projected unit credit method.

The principal assumptions used for the purpeses of the actuarial valuations were as follows:

2009 2008
Discount rate 13.41%
Expected rate of salary increase 6.00%

Amounts recognised in profit or loss account in respect of defined benefit plan are as follows:

(Rupees in thousand)

Current service cost 328

Interest on obligation 54

Actuarial gains / losses recognised during the year 135
617

The amount included in the balance sheet arising from TRG Philippines Inc. obligation in respect of its defined benefit plan is

OLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

as follows:
2009 2008
(Rupees in thousand)
Present value of unfunded defined benefit obligation 1,040
Unrecognised acturial {gains) / losses 6,629
Met liability arising from defined benefit obligation 7,669

4
Movement in the present value of the defined benefit obligation in the current period are as follows:

Opening defined benefit obligation 2,178
Effects of exchange rate changes 84
Current service cost 328
Interest cost 54
Actuarial gains / losses (1,604)
(losing defined benefit obligation 040

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE CONS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009
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18.7 As of June 30, 2009 the AIG investors have invested the full USD 30 million committed to TRGIL.

18.8 Preference shares of USD 30 million were discounted to their present value to calculate the liability component. The differance
batween the face value of preference shares and present value represents equity compenent which were transferred to equity
as minority interest. Discount rate used is calculated using the United States corporate loan base rate plus the credit risk premium

of TRGIL {approximating to an average rate of 1.05% per annum).

18.9 Following is the movement in preferred stock during the year:

Opening balance - July |

Foreign exchange differences

Preferred shares issued to AlG during the year
Financial charges

Transfer to minority interest {equity component)
Closing balance - june 30

Note 2009 2008
{Rupees in thousand)

1,987,121
384,120

64.659

1,436,004

9. Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease

Future minimum lease payments under finance lease together with the present value of the minimum lease payments are as fallows:

Within one year

After one year but not mere tham five years

Total minimum lease payments

Less: amounts representing finance charges

Present value of minimum lease payments

Less. current partien shown under current liabilities

1609 1008
Minimum Present Minimum  Present
lease value of lease value of
payments payments payments payments
...................... (Rupees in thousand).................
313,139 30,592
15.968 13,752
49 207 44,344
4,863 ;
44 344 44344
30,592 30,592
13,752 13,752

Rentals are payable upto the year 2013. The leases carry financing rates ranging from 7.99% to 1B.71% per annum (2008: 4% 10
17% per annumy). At the end of the lease term, the ownership of the assets shall be transferred to the Group against security deposits

paid.
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18. Convertible Preference Share

8.1

18.2

18.3

18.4

18.5

18.6

On October 4, 2005, TRGIL entered into a series & preferred stock purchase agreement with a consortium of nvestors, COMprismg
of AlG Global Emerging Markets Fund 11, L.P., MG Annuity Insurance Company, American General Life [nsurance Company, and
Variable Annuity Life Insurance Company (the AlG Investors), The agreement allowed for the purchase of up o 26,785,714
shares of Series A Preferred Stock for an initially determined purchase price of USD 1.12 per share. The total commitment amount
was up to USD 30 million,

The preferred stock is entitled to the same voting rights and dividend entitlements as commeon stock. but rank firgher in (he
event of liquidation, which is defined as a change of cantrol or qualifiad public offering. and are entitled to proceeds computed
using pre-determined formula in accordance with the agreement. The preferred stock is also entitled to trigger event dividends
at the rate of 8% per annum which accrue only if cercain conditions precedent and covenants are not met and only for the
duration that the company remains in breach of such conditions and covenants. There were no triggering events during the year
ended June 30, 2009 requiring such an accrual or payment.

I a liquidity event occurs, which is defined as a change of control ar qualified public offering, the investars will receive the
liquidity event amount for each preferred share held, which is determined as follow:

125% of the liquidation amount (USD |.12) if the liquidicy event occurs within 21 months of the initial closing date.

135% of the liquidation amount (USD .12} if che liquidity event occurs between 21 months and 3§ manths of the inttial closing
date.

145% of the liquidation amount (USD 1.12) if the liquidity event occurs between 36 months and 54 months of the tmtial clasing
date.

135% of the liquidation amount (USD 1.12} if the liquidity event occurs between 36 months and 54 months of the mitial ¢losing
date.

The preferred stock is convertible inta common stock of TRGIL and exchangeable into the holding company’s share capital at
the optien of the AlG investors. Further, in case TRGIL has not consummated a qualified public offering on or before the third
anniversary of the initial closing date, the investors have the right to cause TRGIL to sell to a third party all or a portion of
either (i) TRGIL's issued common stock: or {ii) the consolidated assets of TRGIL and its Turther subsidiaries. {n case the investors
exercise this right, TRGIL has the right to redeem the preferred shares at a price not less than the eriginal issue price of USD
|.12 per share,

The preferred stock can be converted at any time into an equivalent amount of common shares at the option of the preferred
stockholder, subject to adjustment if, at any time after the date the preferred shares were issued. the Company issues or sells,
or Is deemed to have issued or sold any shares of the Company's common stock for consideration per snare less than the conversion
price of the preferred shares on the date of such issuange of sale. Additionally, a qualified public offering ar change of control
can cause an adjustment of conversion price but only if certain minimum valuation thresholds are not met.

As the thrd anniversary of the initial closing date has passed on October 4, 2008 and TRGIL has not consummated 2 qualified
offering, the AlG investors have the right to cause TRGHL to sell its consolidated assets. Howaever, todate TRGHL has not been
notified by the AlG investors of any intention to cause it 1o sell the assets.

. TRG PAKISTAN LTD.
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17.3 Blasiar Inc., received advances from its former President in December 2007 and January 2008, aggregating USD 108,000
equivalent to Rs 8.120 million {2008: Rs 6.810 milllion). These advances relate to a partial repayment from the former President
of funds he incarrectly repaid himself on past |oans, in violation of the seniority of other loan agreements. The advance has
an B% interest rate similar to the related loan and is classified as long term, as it will not be discharged until all other defaulted
loans have first been paid.

{7.4 Blasiar Inc., executed a promissory note with Blasiar Insurance Trust for Rs 47.989 million (USD 591.000) en October 31, 2005.
The farmer President of Blasiar Inc., is the trustee of Blasiar Insurance Trust. The note has an annual interest rate of ¥.5% and
an original maturity date of Decemnber |, 2010. The balance outstanding as of June 30, 2008 and 2009 is USD 547,474 equivalent
to Rs 37.283 million and Rs 44.455 million respectively, with USD 500,764 equivalent to Rs 40.662 million {2008: Ry 34.10!
millian) classified as current and USD 46,712 equivalenc to Rs 3.793 million (2008: Rs 3.181 million) classified as non current.

175 These are preacquisition loans provided by CEQ of the holding company - Zia Chishti and CEQ of DGS Mr Jeffery Cox amounting
to s 20.300 million (USD 250,000) and Rs 0.279 mitlion (USD 3,738) respectively. The loan of Mr Zia Chishti carries 2 markup

of 8% per annum whereas the other loan is interest free. The maturity period of both the loans is indefinite and are unsecured.

I7.6 On July |, 2008, TRG Holdings, LLC abtained a bridge loan from CEQ of the holding company, Zia Chishti of Rs [82.700 miflion
(USD 2.250 million) for intercompany fund requirement. The loan carries an interest rate of 8% and 15 secured by all the assets
of the Company. The loan had an initial maturity of November 30, 2008, but has been extended to |anuary |, 2013 n order to

maintain a sufficient cash balance in the Company given the current velatility in the credit markets.

17.7 This represents a note payable by TRG Healthcare Inc., to an individual for a non-compete agreement. This note carried an
interest rate of 9% per annum. The balance cutstanding as of June 30, 2008 was settled during the year.

I7.8 On December 23, 2008, two subsidiaries of the TRG Healthcare Inc, Administrative Enterprises, Inc and Adminco. Inc. (the
borrowers) entered into a financing agreement with Cobiz Bank (the bank) for a loan of Rs 243.600 millien (USD 3 mulhon)
at an interest rate of one month LIBOR + 4%. The principal of the loan is payable in equa! monthly instaliments aver a peried
of five years. Interest on the outstanding balances 15 due monthiy. The bank has a first prionity Security interest in all ot the
assets of the borrowers. On January 16, 2009, the borrowers entered into an agreement that fixes the interest rate ol the |oan
1t 5.98%. Also in January 2009, the borrowers distribured Rs 228.520 million {USD 2.9 million) of the |oan proceeds to their
shareholders in accordance with their ownership interests - TRG Healthcare, Inc (30%) and a minority shareholder (10%).

During the year ended June 30, 2009, the borrowers repaid Rs 20.300 (USD 0.250 million) ot the outstanding principal of the
loan. The agreement requires that the borrowers maintain cash balances of Rs 40.600 million (USD 0.5 million) till the first
anniversary of the agreement, increasing ta Rs 60.900 million (USD 0.750 miltion) and Rs B1.200 million (USD | millian) in
the second and third anniversaries respectively. Additionally the total external debt and accrued interest must not exceed .75
times the trailing four quarter's Earnings Before Interest, Tax, Depreciation and Amortization, Finally the agreement requires
the borrowers' tangible net worth to be na less than the net worth at closing and increasing by Rs 20.300 (USD 0.250 million)
and Rs 40,600 million (USD 0.5 millien) in the first and second anniversary of the closing date.
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, Note 2009 2008
|7, Long Term Finances (Rupees in

thousand)

Related parties

Loan from the CEQ of holding company - secured 17.1 15,428

Loan from the CEQ of holding company - secured 171 9.744

Loan from a shargholder of subsidiary company - secured 17.2 10,150

Loan from a shareholder of subsidiary company - unsecured 17.3 8,120

Lean from Blasiar Insurance Trust - unsecured i7.4 44,455

Loan from the CEO of holding company - unsecured 17.5 20,300

Loan frem the CEQ of subsidiary company - unsecured 17.5 279

Loan from the CEQ of holding company - unsecured 17.6 182,700
291,176

Others

Notes payable - unsecured 17.7 | - |

Fimancial Institution

Lean fram the Cobiz Bank - unsecured 17.8 223,300 |

Loan from the Bank of Scotland - unsecured 522
223822
514,998

Less: Current portion shown under current liabilities 133,361
381,637

17, Blasiar Inc., entered into a security agreement with the Chief Executive Officer of the holding company (CED) on June |, 2004,
whereby the CEQ loaned Blasiar Inc., an aggregate of Rs 22.200 million {USD 370,000) which consisted of a Rs 15 million (U3D
250,000) senior secured convertible promissory note and a Rs 7.2 million (USD 120,000) secured subordinated promissory note.
The Rs 15 million (USD 250,000) senior secured note had a 19% annual interest rate and an original maturity date of December
|, 2004. The Rs 7.2 million {USD 120,000) secured subordinated note had an 8% annual interest rate and an original maturity
date of December I, 20Q5. The balances outstanding as of june 30, 2007 are USD 190,000 equivalent to Rs 15.428 million (2008:
Rs 12.939 million) and USD 129,000 equivalent to Rs 9.744 million {2008: Rs 8.172 million) respectively and have been classified
as current due ta: {a) Blasiar Inc., failing to discharge the obligation in full in accardance wath the terms of the note, and (b}

the semiority of the note being violated.

flasiar Inc. has not paid any interest to the CEQ since January |, 2007. The security agreement for Rs 15 million (USD 256,000)
loan pravides CEO an option to canvert in full or in part to series B preference shares of Blasiar Inc. However, todate Blasiar

Inc.. has nat recevied any notice for such conversion. The loans are secured by all assets of Blasiar Inc. Loan of USD 120,000 15
subordinated to foan of USD 250,000.

17.2 Concurrent with the aforementionad security agreement (note 17.1} Blasiar Inc. received as loan from its former President (a
shareholder as well) an amount aggregating USD 125,000 equivalent te Rs 10.150 million (2008: 8.513 million} in consideration

of a secured subordinated pramissory note with the same principal amount. The note had an 8% annual interest rate and an

original maturity date of December 1, 2005. The entire balance has not yet been paid and is classified as current due 10 Blasiar

Inc., failing to discharge the obligation in full in accordance with the terms of the note.
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[5. Cash and Bank Balances

Balances with banks in:
- CUrrent accounts
- depasit accounts

Cash in hand

Mote 2009 2008

{Rupees in
thousand)

280,618

5.1 35,767
316,385

4,717

321,112

I5.1' Rates of return on deposit accounts range from 1% to 6% per annum (2008: 1% to 6% per annum).

15.2 The tatal balance of cash and bank includes an amount of Rs 0.977 million (2008: nil} which relates to funds restricted for

the payment of dividend.

}6. Share Capital

Authorised share capital
Authorised share capital

- Drdinary class “A’ shares of Rs. |0 each
- Qrdinary class ‘B’ shares of Rs. [0 each

Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital

- Ordinary class ‘A’ shares of Rs. 10 each - note 16|
shares allotted for consideration paid in cash
shares allotted for consideration other than cash

2009 1008
Number Rupeesin Number Rupees in
of shares thousand of shares thousand

720,000,000 7200000  7I003500
13,000,000 130,000 BRIERETS
733,000.000 _ 7,330,000 i
315,765,722 | | 3757657 1vuig o
9.624,978 96,250 Cpll 4.
385,390,700 3,853,907  GHE T

16.1 On July 25, 2007 TRGIL entered into an equity subscription and shareholders agreement with IDB Infrastructure Fund LP {IDB).
In accordance with the term of the agreement, TRGIL issued 12,395,694 shares at USD 1.2 per share resulting in gross proceeds
of USD 15 million. IDB has an option to invest a furcher USD 15 million into TRGIL as ordinary shares at a per share price of
USD 1.21. This optian expires on the second anniversary of the date the agreement was entered into. Furcher, DB has the nght
to exchange all or any lesser portion of its ordinary shares into a predefined number of freely tradzble shares of the company.
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Note 2009 2008
(Rupees in
|2. Trade Debts - unsecured thousand)
Considered good 1,773,933
{onsidered doubtful 82,681
1,856,614
Less: pravision for doubtful debts 12.1 {82,681
1,773,933
| 2.1 Provision for doubtful debis

Opening balance - July | 112,399
Reclassification in opening balance {16,081)
Fareign exchange differences (1,745)
Bad debt expense reversed during the year (?59)
Acquired during the year 2.713

Reclassification (13.646)
Closing balance - june 30 B2.681

13. Loans and Advances - considered good

Advance (o a related party 13.1 36,540
Advances - others 13.2 13,758
50,298

13.1 This represents advance given to Mr Joseph D Livingston, a key management personnel of the group. This advance will be adjusted against
the future sales commissions earned by him.

.

13.2These represent advances to directors and executives of indirect subsidiaries extended for the purpose of meeting business expenses and are
adjusted upon submission of respective expenses details.

|14. Short Term Deposits And Prepayments

These represent deposits placed and prepayments made to various service providers, suppliers and landlords in the narmal cours of business.
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10. Long Term Deposits

These inciude deposits placed with various service providers, suppliers, landlerds and lessors in the normal course of business.

Note 2009 2008
R in th d
Il. Deferred Tax (Repesain thossmmd)
b1 Tax effect of deductible / taxable temporary differences arising on:
- Provisions and write-offs against trade debts 25,351
- Tax losses and credits 1,559,120
- Accelerated depreciation and amortisation {130,619)
- Unpaid accrued expenses / prepayments / deferrals (15,839)
1,388,013
Less: deferred tax asset not recognised 1.3 (1,495,147)
(107,134)
11.2 Movement in deferred tax (habilities} / assets:
(pening deferred tax (liabilities) / assets - july |, -
Prior year deferred tax 8,288
Foreign exchange differences (3,167)
Deferred tax debits / credits during the year 558,413
Deferred tax asset not recognised {670,668)
Closing deferred tax (liabilities) / assets - June 30, (197,134}

11.3 The Group has not recognised deferred tax asset on deducatable tempaorary differences as at June 30, 2009 as in view of the

management it is nat probable that date future taxable profits would be available against which such deductable tempaorary
differences could be utilised,

NOTES TU ANV rUKMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009
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Note 2009 2008

{(Rupees in thousand)

8. Long Term Investments

E‘.Ishurance policies - at fair value I,II*i
thers 2 124
9. Long Term Loans - And Advances
considered pood
Advances to related parties - unsecured 9.1 14,210
Others - unsecured 636

14848

9.1 Advances to related parties represents advances provided to certain key management personnels of the company. The advances
will be adjsuted against the future bonuses and commissions earned by the employees. Details of the advances are as follows:

Name of borrower Designation Expected repayment 2009 2008
term/ Settlement (Rupees in thousand)
term
Pat W. Costello Executive February 11, 2043 4,060 -
Hasnain Aslam Director - (V] June 20, 2014 19,150 -

14,210 .

9.2 Movement in loans and advances given to related parties:

Opening balance
Foreign exchange adjustment

Disbursements during the year 13,790

Repayments/adjustments during the year -

Foretgn exchange difference 420
14210

14.210

9.3 Maximum aggregate balance of loans due from related parties outstanding at the end of any manth during the year was Rs
14.210 million (2008: Rs 38.74 million),
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The calculation of fair value less cost to seil for the business operations is most sensitive to the following assumptions:

Revenue growth

Revenue growth assumptions have been derived from the projections prepared by the sales team. The management 15 of the

view that these assumptions are reasonable considering the current market dynamics and prevailing market condirians.

Cost of service delivery and gross margins

Costs of service delivery have been projected en the basis of multiple strategies planned by management to ensure profitable
operations. These strategies mainly include cost cutting mechanism such as offshare migration of labour etc., resulting in
improved gross margins over the forecasted period.

Operating expenses and capital expenditures

Operating expenses and capital expenditures have been projected taking into account growth in business volumes z2nd historical

trends.
Discount rate

Discount rates reflect management estimates of the rate of return required for the business and are calculated after taking inco

account the prevailing risk free rate, industry risk and business risk. Discount rates are calculated by using the weighred average

cost of capital.
Sensitivity to changes in assumptions

Management believes that reasonable possible changes in other assumptions used to determine the recoverable amount of the

CGUs will not result in an impairment of goodwill.

7.4 This reprasents payment under a stock purchase agreement of Administrative Enterprises Inc., and Adminco Inc., aquired through
TRG Healthcare which contained an earn-out incentive contingent upen performance based on average vevenue and earnings
before interest, tax, depreciation and amartisation.

FOR IHE YEANK ENMUED JUNE 3U, L0UY
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7.1 The amortisation charge for the year has been allocated as follows:

TRG PAKISTAN LTD.

Mote 2009 2008
{(Rupees in thousand)
Cost of service delivery 25 40,504
Administrative and general expenses 27 109,555
150,059
7.2 Impairment
Impairment en goodwill of TRG Europe 1.2.1 27,407
Fmpairment on customer lists of Blasiar Inc. -
27,407
7.2.1  The company has impaired the entire goadwill associated with its TRG Europe Plc subsidiary amounting to Rs 27.407 million.
The goodwill was impaired due to continuing losses incurred by the subsidiary, with lower probability of conversion of the fosses
(nto profits in the forseeable future.
7.3 Impairment testing of goodwill

The carrying amount of goodwill allocated to the individual cash generating units (CGUs) is as follows:

1I5KY |nc.

TRG Customer Solutions Inc.
Stratasoft inc.

TRG Europe Plc

TRG Insurance Sotutions Inc.
Digital Globe Services Inc.
TRG Healthcare Inc,

2009 2008
(Rupees in thousand)

317,431

1,229,743 R

235,300

12,876 e
16,758

2,321 675

509,947 -y

Key assumptions used in fair vaiue less cost to sell calculations

e I a |

he following rates are used by the Group:

Discount rates
(discrete period)

%
ISKY Inc. 16.00
TRG Customer Solutions Inc. 15.30
Stratasoft Ine. 17.1
TRG insurance Solutions Inc. 16.30
TRG Healthcare Inc. 16.30
Digital Globe Services Inc. 18.30

he recoverable amount of the business operation of the cash generating units have been determined based
ost to sell calculation, using cash flow projections based on business plan approved by management covering
he discount rate applied to cash flaw projections beyond the five year period are extrapolated

on fair value less
a flve year period.
using a termtnal growth rarte.

Terminal
growth rates
Yo

6.00
6.00
5.00

6.00
5.00
5.00
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Goodwill Patents /trade Non-compete Customer Computer
marks covenants lists Software Total

cveeeereer[RUPees in thousand)..............

Year ended June 30, 2009
Additions - - - - 84,600 £4.600

Earn out arrangement - note 7.4 15,489 - - - . 16,489

Reclassifications

Cost - - : - ‘ .32 | 1232
Accumulated amortisation - \ - - - | (396) (396) |
- - - " 836 836

Acquisition of subsidiaries - note 1.5

Cost ‘ 16,263 : z : ‘ T
Accumulated amortisation - - 5 ] 2: I . \

16,2463 . - - - 16,263

Foreign exchange differences

Cost \ 382.235 18,055 9.630 66,396 11,085 | 503,401 |

Accumulated impairment / amorusation (7,376) | (10,306) (5.795) (31.513) (19200 | (74.192)
314,859 7.749 3,835 34,883 7883 429209

Disposals / ad)ustments s _
Cost (6389) | 2,135 ‘ - \ ‘ (8.019) | (12.273)

Accumulated impairment / amortisation - - | - - 2014 & 3.014
(6,389) 1,135 - - {5 (4259
Impalrment - note J.2 (27,497) - - - - {27,407
Amaortisation charge - (14,677) (10,539) (81,025} (43.818) (150,059)
Net book value as at June 30, 2009 2372675 37478 14897 148031 86994 2610075
At June 30, 2008
Cost 1,964,184 93.870 50,053 345,162 139,490 2,592,759
Accumulated amortisation - (51,5%99) (28.452) (138,170) (99.759) (317,980)
Accumulated impairment (15,324) - - (12,819) (2,233)  (30,374)
Net boak value 1,948,860 42271 11,801 194,173 37498 2244403
At June 30, 2009
Cost 1,372.782 114,060 59,683 411,558 144388 3,202,471
Accumulated amortisation - (76,582) (44,786)  (248.241) (154,731  (524.341)
Accumulated impairment (50,107} - - (15,285) (2,663)  (88,035)
Net book value 2,322,615 37,478 14,897 148,031 86,994 2,610,075
Amartisation rate §%1t020% 4% wl0% 1S%itilidk 20% to 33.33%
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TRG PAKISTAN LTD.

7. Intangibles

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

. Patents /trade Mon-compete " Computer
Goodwill L Pl Customer lists Koo Total
S B S T SRR Rupeesinthousand ... _____ ____ _____
At June 30, 2007
Cost 663,130 83,308 50,744 303,677 128,193 2.229,052
Accumulated amortisation (37,003)  (23.184) (55,193) (79.551)  (194.933)
Accunulated impairment (15.324) - = (4,017) {2.233) (21,634)
Net book value h647.806 46,303 27,560 244,407 46,409  2.012.485
Year ended June 30, 2008
Additians g9 - 12,568 11,657
Earn out arrangement - nate 7.4 23.603 - - 23 603
Acquisition of subsidiaries
Cosl 62,428 - 61,428
Accumulated amortisation - - -
61 418 - - 62418
Foreign exchange differences
Cost 217,324 10,473 (621} 41,485 4,835 113,426
Accumulated impairment / amortisation - {5,438) 1,553 (19,862} (13,802) (37.549) 5
217,324 5,035 862 21,623 (8.967) 135877
Impairment - note 7.2 - - - (8,742) (8.142)
Disposals / adjustments B
Cost {2,301) . . - (16,106) | (18,407)
Accumuiated amortisation . - - . 15,777 15,777
{2.301) - (329) (2,630}
Amortisation charge - (9,156) (6.821) (63,115} (22,183)  (101,275%)
Net book value as at June 30, 2008 1,948,840 42 271 .6 194,173 37498 2.244 403
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A . TRG PAKISTAN LTD.

Note 2009 2008

Rupees in thousand

6.2 Capital work-in-progress

Civil works 10,218
Office equipment 1,961
Lomputer scftware b
Advance ta contractars :
12,255

6.3 The depreciation charge for the year has been allocated as follows: o
Cost of service delivery 25 256,553
Administrative and general expenses 2] 103,005
359,558

6.4 Disposals of items of property, plant and equipment the net baok value of which exceeded Rs 0.050 millign.

o o hecumuated et book : :
Description of ; Original cost / e ; Sale  Profit/ {loss) particulars
: Entity depreciation lue at the t Mode of sal
item sold revalued amount ot the thme of sile vaueﬂ{ IE € Procesds o sale & ot salt of buyer

Henda {ive, Prosmatic TRG {Private} Limited %67 448 39 318 (1)} Asper Company's palicy Nadesm Edahy, CED TRG (Pt Lud.

turnrure & Fexture TRG €5 Inc. 4,610 519 Negatiation Ridge Line

Lease Hald mprovements TRG (3 Inc. 11,122 1,632 Negotiation Ridge Line

Computers and office equipment  TRG {5 Inc. 1,895 1,672 Negotiation Ridge Line
17.627 4,883 12,744 11,820 (924)

Charlesten Building - see note 6.5 TRG Holdings, LLC 168,334 : 168,334 145,780 (22,554) Negotiation Rabinsn & Mcelwe Plc
186,928 5,531 181,397 157,218, {23,419

6.5 During the year ended fune 30, 2009, a subsidiary of che Group, TRG Holdings LLC disposed of a property located in Charleston, West
¥irgina to a third party for Rs 145.780 mullian (USD 1850 million), which had been acquired at book value from its subsidiary, TRG
Customer Solutions, Inc. TRG Holdings LLC recognised a loss on disposition ef the building of Rs 22.554 million (USD 0.286 million}.
The Charleston property was leased back ta TRG Customer Solutions, lnc after the sale on operating lease.

EE S b IRl i 5 srmurer

- wmm Ngh N

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009
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TRG PAKISTAN LTD.

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Computers,
Furniture Communication
Building on Leasehold and and office
freehold band  improvements fittings tquipment Yehicles Generators Total
crnemenrenenn{ RUpees in thousand)...............
Year ended june 30, 2009
Additions / transfers from capital work-in-progress 12,412 42,550 31,710 268,470 9.492 242 364,876
Reclassfication ;
Cost - (368} (4,684) (5.137) 8,957 {1,232)
Accumulared depreciation - 34l 3,405 961 (431 | 3%
- - {27 {1,279 (4,176) 4,646 (836)
Foreign exchange differences )
Cost 52,760 37,305 10,213 182,284 2,455 354 295,371
Accumulated depreciation {5,108) (17,900) {10,342) (83,082) {857) {366) | (117.655)
47 657 19,405 9,871 99,202 |,598 (12y 177716
Adjustments ]
Cost i ; 4,776 (27.154) | (489)] - | (22867
Accumulated depreciation : - (F,595) 20,003 15 s 18,423 |
- - 3.181 (7,151} (474) - (4,444)
[Hsposals |
Cose | 168,334y | (33709 | (a.849) | (144,688) {3‘149}‘ " (354.829) ‘
Accumulated depreciation r . 17,551 429 | {42) 2,04 ; 19.978
(168.334) {16,158) {4,420y (144,730 (1,209) - {334.85D)
Depreciation charge (18,424} (69.697)  (30,499)  (230.813) (6.573) (3,852} (359 .558)
Net book value as at June 30, 2009 148,628 109,149 87,360 620,919 23,510 6,699 996.245
At June 30, 2008
Cost 298,959 316,512 2100548  1.477.685 36,331 11,662 2,341,677
Accumulated depreaiation (23.637)  (183.463) (123,004)  (B36,354) (11,479) (6,287) (1,184,224)
Accumulated impairment - - - (4,091) - (4.0%1)
Net book value 275,312 133,049 17.544 637,220 24,857 5375 1153362
At June 30, 2009
{ost 195,797 362,658 252,030 1,751,893 319.403 2,215 2,632.996
Accumulated deprecation (A7,169)  (253.509)  (164,670) (1,126,094) (15.893) (14516} (1,621,853)
Accumulated impairment = - - (4,878) - ~ (4.878)
Net book value 148,628 199,149 87,360 620,919 23,510 6,699 996,265
Depreciation rate 19% 1% w3 D%  10%w50% 8313%w50% 4% 10 33% 0%
6.1.1  Met book value of assets held under finance lease as follows: omputers,
Furnityre  COmMMURication
Building on Leasehold and and office
freehold land  improvements fittings equHpment Yehicles Generators  Total
c-wssesann{RUpees in thousand)..... .o
June 30, 2009 31,471 18.733 = 50,204
June 30, 2008 146,973 31,659 7,463 - 192,095
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TRG PAKISTAN LTD.

6. Property, Plant And Equipment

Note 1009 2008

(Rupees in thousand)
Operating property, plant and equipment 6.1 996,265
Capital work-in-progress 6.2 12,255
1,068,520

6.1 Operating property, plant and equipment

Computers,
Furniture  Communication
Building on Leasehold and and office
freehald land  improvements fittings equipment  Yehicles Generators Total

cersssnnrs(RUpees in thousand)...........

At June 30, 2007

Cost 265,595 179,412 88,493 922,503 19,390 11,473 1,486,866
Accumulated depreciation (15,255) (100,658)  (48,543) (560,795) (1,45} (2,328) (735.030)
Accumulated impairment . . . {4,091) . E (4,091)
Net book value 150,340 18,754 39,950 357,617 1,939 9,45 747,145

Year ended june 30, 2008

Additions / transfers frem capital work-in-progress - 99.591 48,383 457,030 15,210 174 620,388
Foreign exchange differences _
Cost 33,364 26,045 88,365 284,942 1,731 [ 15 ‘ 504,462 ‘
Accumulated depreciation (2,429) (68,781) (69,727} | (238,977} 471 (324) (379,767)
30,935 27,264 18,638 45,965 2,202 (309) 124,695
Dispasals . )
{ost - - - {173} 22 - (173)
Accumulated depreciation - - : 28 - - 98
- (75) - : (75)
Write offs
Last - (58,536) | (24,693) | (186,637 - - (269,866)
Accumulated depreciation - 42,719 18,213 157,359 (1) 4 218,244
- (I5757)  (6,480)  (29,178) (111 4 (51,612)
Depreciation charge {5.953) (56,803)  (22.947) (194.039) (4,388) (3.639) (287.76%)
Net book valve as at june 30, 2008 275,322 133,049 71,544 637,220 24 852 5.375 1,153,362

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009



FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

——— TRG PAKISTAN LTD.

Tl X .
Leill - Ll L e e S R .

The group will apply the I1AS 19 (Amendment) from the effective date.

*  |AS 23 (Amendment), 'Borrowing costs' (effective from January 1, 2009). The amendment requires an entity
to capitalise borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, canstruction or production of a qualifying
asset (one that takes a substantial period of time to get ready for use or sale) as part of the cost of that asset.
The option of immediately expensing those borrowing costs will be removed. The amended standard is currently

not applicable to the group as there are no qualifying assets.

* IRS 27 (Revised}, "Consolidated and separate financial statements’, {effective from July 1, 2009). The revised
standard requires the effects of all transactions with nen-controlling interests to be recorded in equity if there
1$ no change in control and these transactions will no longer result in goodwill or gains and losses. The standard
alse specifies the accounting when control is lost. Any remaining interest in the entity 15 re-measured to fair
value, and a gain or foss is recognised in profit or loss. The management is in the process of assessing the impact

of its adoption on the group’s financial statements.

s |AS 32 (Amendment), ‘Financial instruments: Presentation’, and |AS | (Amendment), ‘Presentarion of financial
statements’ — "Puttable financial instruments and obligations arising on liquidation’ (effective from |anuary
|, 2809). The amended standards require entities to classify puttable financial instruments and Instruments,
or components of nstruments that impose on the entity an obligation 1o deliver to another party a pro rata
share of the net assets of the entity only on liquidation as equity, provided the financial instruments have
particular features and meet specific conditions. The management is in the process of assessing the impact of
its adoption on the group’s financial statements.

*  1A5 36 (Amendment), 'Impairment of assers’ (effective from January |, 2009). Where [air value less costs to
sell is calcubated on the basis of discounted cash flows, disclosures equivalent ta those for value-in-use calculation
should be made. The group will provide the required disclosure where applicable for impairment tests from the
effective date.

*  IAS 38 (Amendment), ‘Intangible assets’ (effective from January |, H}G9}. A prepayment may only be recognised
in the event that payment has been made in advance of obtaining right of access ta goods or receipt of services,

The management is in the process of assessing the impact of its adoption on the group's financial statements.

There are other accounting standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting standards
that are mandatory for accounting periods beginning after July |, 2008 but are considered not to be relevant or have
any significant effect on the consolidated financial statements and are therefore not detailed i these statements,
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

N TRG PAKISTAN LTD.

o IFRS 3 (Revised), ‘Business combinations’ (effective from July |, 2009). The revised standard continues to apply
the acquisition method to business combinations, with some significant changes. For example, all payments to
purchase a business are to be recorded at fair value at the acquisition date, with contingent payments classified
as debt subsequently re-measured through the income statement. There is a choice on an acquisition-by-
acquisition basis to measure the non-controlling interest in the acquiree either ac fair vale or at the non-
controlling interest’s proportionate share of the acquiree’s net assets. All acquisition-related costs should be
expensed. The management is in the process of assessing the impact of its adeption on the group’s financial
statements.

* IFRS 8, ‘Operating segments’, replaces 1AS 14, 'Segment reporting’, and aligns segment reporting with the
requirements of the US standard SFAS 131, ‘Disclosures about segments of an enterprise and related informanion’
The new standard requires a ‘management approach’. under which segment information is presented on the
same hasis as that used for internal reporting purposes. This has resulted in an increase in the number of
reportable segments presented. In addition, the segments are reported in a manner that is more consistent with
the internal reperting previded 1o the chief operating decision-maker. The adoption of this standard will only

impact the presentation of the financial statements.

= 1AS | (Revised), ‘Presentation of financial statements’ (effective from January 1, 2009). The revised standard
will prohibit the presentation of items of income and expenses (that is, ‘non-owner changes in equity’) in the
statement of changes in equity, requiring ‘non-owner changes in aquity’ to be presented separately from owner
changes in equity. All non-owner changes in equity will be required to be shown in a performance statement,
but entities can choose whether to present one performance statement (the statement of comprehensive income)
or two statements {the income statement and ‘statement of comprehensive income). Where entities restate or
reclassify comparative infermation, they will be required ta present a restated balance sheet as at the beginming
comparative period in addition to the current requirement to present balance sheets at the end of the current
period and comparative period. The management is in the process of assessing the impact of its adoption on

the group’s financial statements.
. IAS 19 (Amendment), ‘Employee benefits' (effective from January |, 200%).
»  The amendment clarifies that a plan amendment that results in a change in the extent to which benefit
promises are affected by future salary increases is a curtailment, while an amendment that changes
benefits attributable ta past service gives rise te a negative past service cost if it results in & reduction

in the present value of the defined benefit obligation.

=  The distinction between short term and long term employee benefits will be based on whether benetits

are due to be settled within or after 12 months of employee service being rendered.

= |AS 37, 'Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets, requires contingent liabilities to be

disclosed, not recognised. 183 19 has been amended to be consistent.
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

TRG PAKISTAN LTD.

5.17 Significant accounting judgments and estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards requires the use of
certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying the Group's
accounting policies. Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historic experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, Revisions to accounting

estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and in any future periods affected.

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, management has made the following estimaces and judgments which

are significant to the consolidated financial statements.

(a) 31aff retirement plans / other employee benefits (note 5.1)

(b) Provision for taxation (note 5.4)

(c) Useful [ives of items of fixed assets, residual values, methods of depreciation and amortisation and impairment (note 5.5)
(d) Impairment testing of goedwill (note 7.2)

{e) Valuation of convertible preference shares {note 18)

(f) Determination of functional currency of the entities {nate 5.11)
5.18 Changes in financial reporting framework
3.18.1 Standards, amendments to published standards and new interpretations effective during the year ended |une 30, 2009:

IFRS 7, ‘Financial instruments: Disclosures’, effective for the annual periods beginning on or atter July |, 2008 introduces
new disclosures relating to financial instruments and does net have any impact on the classification and measurement
of the company's financial instruments.

There are other new standards and interpretations that were mandatory for accounting period began on or before July
|, 2008 but were considered not ta be relevant or did not have any significant effect on these consolidated financial

statements and are therefore not detailed in these financial statements.

3.18.2 Standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting standards
that are not yet effective:

*  IFRS 2 (Amendment), ‘Share-based payment’ (effective from january |, 2009). The amended standard deals
with vesting conditions and cancellations. |t clarifies that vesting conditions are service conditions and performance
conditions only. Other features of a share-based payment are not vesting conditions. These features would need
to be included in the grant date fair vadue for transactions with employees and others providing similar services:
they would not impact the number of awards expected o vest or valuation thereof subsequent to grant date.
All cancellations, whether by the entity or by other parties, should receive the same accounting treatment. The

management is in the process of assessing the impact of its adoption on the group’s financial statements.

L




N TRG PAKISTAN LTD.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation of the net investment in foreign subsidiary,
and of borrowings and other corrency instruments designated as hedges of such investments, are taken to
shareholders’ equity. When a foreign subsidiary is seld, exchange differences that were recorded in equity are
recognised in the income statement as part of the gatn or loss on sale. Goodwill and fair value adjustments
arising on the acquisition of a foreign subsidiary are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign subsidiary
and translated at the closing exchange rate.

5.12 Shares issue cost

According to the provisions of Section 83 of the Companies Ordinance, 1984, direct expenses incurred on issue of shares are
off-set against the share premium account to the extent of available balance. Any residual expenses are shown in equity as a
deduction, net af tax, from the proceeds.

5.13 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpese of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash in hand, cheques in hand, deposits
hanks and highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less, net of bank over draft.

5.14 Financial instruments

All the financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised at the time when the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instruments. The Group derecognises a financial asset or a portion of financial asset when, and only when,
the Group loses control of the contractual rights that comprise the financial asset or portion of financial asset. While a finanaal
liability or part of financial liability is derecognised from the balance sheet when, and only when, it is extinguished 1.e. when
the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. Any gain or loss on the recognition, de-recagnition
of the financial assets and liabilities is taken to the profit and loss account. As of June 30, 2009 the Group held certain financial
assets and 1jabilities that are required to be measured at fair value on a recurring basis. The Company makes use of observable
market based inputs to calculate fair value. The Company utilises derivative financial instruments to reduce interest rate and
foreign cusrency risks and does not held derivative instruments for trading purposes.

5.15 Segment reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component within 2 Group that is engaged in providing products (business segment} or in
providing products within a particular econamic environment (geographical segment), which is subject to risks and rewards
that are different from those of other segments. Inter-segment transfers are accounted for on mutually agreed basis and are
eliminated on conselidation.

5.16 Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where the Group has a
legally enforceable nght to set off the recognised amounts and intends either to settle these an net basis or to realise the assets

NOTES TO AND FUKMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL S1AIEMENID

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009
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ANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FIN

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 10, 2009

TRG PAKISTAN LTD.

5.9 Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as
operating leases, Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor} are charged 1o
profit and loss account on a straight line basis over the lease term.
5.10 Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense when incurred,
5.1l Foreign currency
3.1L.1 Functional And Presentation Currency
ltems included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (the functional currency). The holding company's
tunctional currency is USD, however, these consolidated financial statements are presented n Pakistan Rupees
(PKR) which is the presentation curency as determined by the Group.
5.1l.2 Foreign currency transactions
Foreign currency transactions of the Group entities are transiated into their respective functional currencies at
the rates of exchange approximating those prevailing on the date of transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
in foreign currencies are translated in to their respective functional currencies at the rates of exchange
approximating those prevailing at the balance sheet date, Exchange gains and losses are included in the profit
and loss account.

3.1.3 Foreign currency translations

The results and financial position the Group are translated into Pakistzn Rupees (presentaton currency) as
follows:

() assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are translated at the closing rate at the date of that
balance sheat:

(1) income and expenses for each income statement are translated at average exchange rates; and

(i) all resulting exchange differences are recognised as a separate component of equity.
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An impairment charge recognised in prior years for an asset other than goodwill is reversed if there has been
a change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The
carrying value of the asset is increased to its recoverable amount and the difference is taken to profit and less accournt for the

year.
5.6 Stock-in-trade

Stock-in-trade represents purchased parts and pertains to Stratasoft Inc., which is engaged in developing and providing computer
telephony software solutions to the worldwide contact center industry. These are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined using the First-In First-Out method. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in (he ordinary

course of business, less applicable variable selling expenses.
5.7 Trade debts

lrade debts are recognised and carried at original invoice amount less an allowance for any uncollectible amounts. An estimate
tar doubtiul debts is made when collection of the full amount is no longer probable. The Group writes off trade debts when they

become uncollectible and payments subsequently received on such trade debts are credited to the profit and loss account.
5.8 Revenue recognition

» Revenue from call centre services is recegnised on the basis of number of billable hours or other contractually agreed

metrics such as sales or surveys completed.

- Revenue from inbound and outbound telephonic and internet based communication services which are customised to

the customers' needs is recognised at the contractual rates as seryices are provided.

. Revenue for the initial training that occurs upon commencement of a new client contract is deferred if that training 15
billed separately to a client. Training revenue is amortised on a straight line basis over the fife of the client contract.

The related incremental direct costs are deferred and charged to expense as the related revenue is recognised.

- Revenue from telephony equipment and software sales is recognised when the product is installed at the customer site.
Revenue on software maintenance and support agreements inciuded with the initial sales contract is unbundied (rom
the total contract price and is amartised on a straight line basis over the term of the agreement, generally one year.
Revenue on extended software maintenance and suppert agreements is amortised on a straight line basis over the term

ol the agreement.
. Prafit / interest on bank deposits and advances is recognised as the same accrues.

. Dividend income is recognised when the right ta receive dividend is established.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Depreciation on assets subject to finance lease is provided on the same basis as the Group's owned assets and such rates

are stated in note 6.| below.

552

5.5.3

Intangible assets

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of a subsidiary represents the excess of the cost of the AcquIsition over the
Growp's interest in the et fair value of identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the subsidiaries
at the date of acquisition. Goodwill is initially recognised as an asset at cost and subsequently measured at cost
less impairment in value, it any. Goodwill is tested for impairment on an anncal basis and also when there is
an indication of impairment. Impairment loss on goodwill is not reversed. On disposal of a subsidiary or a

jointly controlled entity, the attributable amount of goodwil| is included in the determination of the profit ar
loss on disposal.

Software

These represent software licenses acquired. These are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment,
if any. Certain internal and external costs directly associated with developing or modifying software for internal
use are capitalised, which begins with the application development stage and ends when the project is substantially
complete and ready for its intended use. Amortisation of softwares is provided on a straight-line basis at the

rates disclosed in note 7 1o the consolidated financial stacements.
Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and any impairment in vaiue if
any and amortised on a straight line basis over their useful lives, as disclosed in note 7 to the consalidated
financial statements.

Useful lives of intangible assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted if the impact on amortisation
15 signilicant.

Gains and {osses on disposal of intangible assets are taken to the profit and loss account,
Impairment of fixed assets (other than goodwill)

The carrying values of fixed assets are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in circumstances indicate

that the carrying values may not be recoverable. If any such indication exists and where the carrying values
exceed the estimated recoverable amount, the fixed assets are written down to their recoverable amounts and

the difference is charged to profit and loss account for the year,

TRG PAKISTAN LTD.
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5.5

The carrying amount of all deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax

assets to be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on the tax rates (and tax laws} that have been enacted or subsequently

enacted at the balance sheet date,

Fixed assets

5.5.1 Property, plant and equipment

Dwmned

These are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any. The initial cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment consists of its purchase price including impaort duties, taxes and directly attributable costs of bringing

the assets to their working conditions and locations for their intended use.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided using straight line and declining balance methads. A full

month's depreciation is charged in the month of addition, and no depreciation is charged in the month of disposal.

Rates of depreciation, which are disclosed in note 6.1 are designed to write-off the cost over the estimated useful lives
of the assets. The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet
date.

Normal repairs and maintenance costs are charged to the profit and loss account as and when incurred. Major renewals
and improvements, if any, are capialised when it is prabable that respective future economic benefic will flow to the

Group and the cost can be measured reliably.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upen disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the sale proceeds with the carrying

amount of the relevant assets. These are recognised in the profit and loss account.

Assets subject to finance lease

Assets subject to finance lease are initially recarded at the lower of the present value of minimum lease payments under
the lease agreements and the fair value of the leased assets. The related obligation under the lease less finanoial charges
allocated to future periods is shown as a liability. The financial charges are allocated to accounting periods in a manner

50 as to provide 2 constant periedic rate of charge on the outstanding liability.
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5.2 Employee stock option plan

TRGIL offers it ordinary shares under an Employee Stock Option Plan (ESOP) to certain senior management employees of
the Group. Under the plan, the exercise price of each option equals the price per share that an external investor pays far
its investment into TRGIL, representing fair value of the shares. Fach time there is an external investment inte TRGIL, an
allocation equivalent to one-third of the number of shares invested i granted to the participating members of cthe ESOP
The strike price for these options is the same as the entry price 1o the investor into TRGIL for that round of investment,
Options granted became exercisable with respect to one-third of the shares on the first anniversary of the grant date and
with respect to one thirty-sixth of the shares initially granted on a monthly basis thereatter aver two years,

The Group recognises compensation expense using a fair value based method for cost related to all share based payments
(ncluding stock options on a straight line basis over the underlying vesting period.

5.3 Provisions
A provision is recognised in the balance sheet when the Group has a legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past
event, it 15 probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation using a
pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the obligation.
The increase in the provision due to passage of time is recognised as interest BXpense.
5.4 Taxation
3.4.1 Current Taxation
The charge for curent taxation is based on taxable income at the current rates of taxation of the respective tountries
of incorporation of the Group entities after taking inte account applicable tax credits, rebates and EXEmptions

available, if any.

5.4.2 Deferred taxation

, 2009

Deferred tax is provided on all temporary differences at the balance sheet date, between the tax base of the assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assecs are recagnised for
all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses to the extent that it is prabable that the deductible
temporary differences will reverse in the future and sufficient taxable profits will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences and unused 1ax osses can be utilised. However, deferred tax is not accounted for
if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business combination that

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30

at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss.
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

4. Basis of Consolidation

These consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the holding company and consolidated financial statements
of TRGIL The financial statements of the holding company and the consolidated financial statements of TRGIL were prepared Lpte
the same reporting date using consistent accounting policies and are combined on a line-by-line basis. All intercompany hatances,

iransactions and resulting unrealised profits have been elimnated.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transierred to the Group and uptoe the date when control ceases.
The purchase method of accouating is used to account for the acquisition af subsidiaries by the Group. The cost of an acquisition i1
measured as the fair value of the assets given, equity instruments issued and liabilities incurred or assumed at the date of exchange,
plus costs directly attributable to the acquisition. |dentifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date, irrespective of the extent of any minority

interest. The excess of the cost of acquisition aver the fair value of the Group's share of the identifiable net assets acquired 13 recorded

as goodwill,

5. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

5.1 Defined Contribution Plans
TRG Pakistan Limited, TRG (Private) Limited and Virtual World (Private) Limited

The companies have defined contribution plans {i.e. recognised provident fund scheme) for all their respective permanent
employees. Equal monthly contributions at the rate of 6.5% of the gross salary are made to the fund both by the companies
and their respective employees. The assets of the fund are held separately under the contral of the Trustees. Contributions

made by the companies are charged 1o income for the year. Total contributions made by the company for the year were
Rs 9.902 million {2008: Rs 8.014 million).

United States based indirect subsidiaries

The United States based indirect subsidiaries have qualified defined contribution plans, established under the proyision
of Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code. The plans provide indirect subsidiaries for matching centributions of upto
5% of the first 6% of employee contributions to the plans. These matching contributions vest 25% per year over a four-
year period. The assets of the plans are held separate from those of the indirect subsidiaries. Total matching contributions
contributed by the indirect susidiaries during the year was Rs 31.896 million {2008: Rs 32329 million}.



TRG PAKISTAN LTD.

The operations were acquired by Digital Globe Services at bock value which approximated fair valye.

2009
(Rupees
Note inThousand)
8% Note Payable (principal) - Zia Chishti 17.5 19,700
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities - 10,181 _
Total i2abilities assumed 29 88!
Less: cash at bank 13,618
Goodwill on acquisition 16,263

1.6 On June 30, 2009, the Group assumed cantrol of the remaining minority interest in its subsidiary CY Investments Limited. (Y
Investments Limited had extended secured promissory notes to the minonty shareholder with an outstanding principal and
acerued interest balance of Rs 47,313 million {USD 582,674). These notes were secured by the minority shareholders investment
in LY Investments Limited. The Group cancelled its notes receivable due to non-recoverability and assumed centrol of the minerity
interest in LY Investments of Rs 44.361 million (USD 546,313). The Group recorded a loss of Rs 2.952 million (USD 36,361 of
the excess of the notes receivable over the minority interest received in exchange.

2. Statement of Compliance

These financial staterments have been prepared in accordance with approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan. Approved
accounting standards comprise of such International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) issued by the international Accounting
Standards Board as are notified under the provisions of the Lompanies Ordinance, 1984, provisians of and directives issued under
the Companies Ordinance, 1984. In case requirements differ, the provisions or directives of the Campanies Ordinance, 1984 shall

prevail,

OLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements of TRGIL prepared under United States - Generally Accepted Accounting Principles have been
adjusted for all material amounts te comply with the requirements of the Companies Ordinance, 1984 and the approved accounting
standards as applicable in Pakistan.

3. Basis of Preparation

These consolidated financizl statements have been prepared on the basis of historical cost convention, except as otherwise disclosed.

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE CONS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

b6



HUTES TO ANU rudMING PARI UF IRE CURDULIVAIGY TINANWIAL FiRILITRIt]S

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

T TRG PAKISTAN LTD.

|.4 The Group consists af:

Holding Company

TRG Pakistan Limited {the holding company)

Subsidiary

The Resource Group International Limited {TRGIL)

Subsidiaries of TRGIL
(indirect subsidiaries of the
holding company)

TRG Internaticnal Holdings
Limited {Farmerly C¥ Services
Limited)

TRG Holdings, LLC

TRG Customner Solutions Inc.

TRG Customer Solutions (Canada} Inc.

|-Sky Inc.

TRG SATMAP Inc.

TRG Satmap [P BYI

TRG Marketing Services Inc.
TRG \nsurance Solutions Inc.
TRG Healtheare Inc.
Administrative Enterprises Inc.
Adminco Inc.

Blasiar Inc., (dba Alert Communicaticns)
CY Investmencs Limited

Central Yoice LLC

Stratasoft Inc.

TRG Senegal

TRG (Private) Lirited

Virtual World (Private) Limited
TRG Philipptnes Inc.

TRG Europe Plc

Digital Globe Services LLC

Location

British Yirgin
Islands

USA

SA

(anada

UsA

U5A

British ¥irgin
Islands

LSA

139

USA

USA

USA

USA

Bermuda

USA

USA

Senegal

Pakistan

Pakistan

Philippines

England

U5A

NMature of business

Holding Company

Corporate

Call center

{all center
Market research
Financing
Holding Company

Call center

Call center

Holding company

Third party administration
Third party administratien
Call center

Holding company

Call center

Call center

Call center

Call center

Call center

Cal! center

Call center

Web based Marketing

Ovwmnership of
the holding
company (%)

72710

Effective
ownership of
the holding
company (%)

1210

1270
72.10
12.70
2.1
1.1
72.10

12,10
58.16
1270
65.43
65.43
58.16
1.
12,70
12.10
12.10
72.10
1170
12.70
12.70
1.1

Voting power
of the holding
company (%)

§0.30

Effective

voting power
of the holding
company (%)

68.30

60,34
&0.30
60.30
60.30
60.30
60.310

60.30
48.24
60.30
h4.27
54.27
48.24
60.30
60.30
60.30
60.30
60.30
60.30
&60.30
60.30
60.30

During the year, the Company taok over the operations of a web marketing company called DGS Inc, by assuming it's net Iiahilitie? as
at July |, 2008. A new subsidiary called Digital Glabe Services LLC was incorporated to acquire this operation. Digital Globe Services
LLC is engaged in the online marketing of bundled telecommunication packages through the internet.

The start up operations of the venture were previously funded by a Rs 19.7 million (USD 0.25 million) advance from Fhe Chiel Executive
Officer of the holding company — Muhammed Ziaullah Khan Chishti. This loan has no repayment terms and accrues interest at a rate
of 8% per annum, This note was assumed by the Digital Globe Services LLC on July 1, 2008.
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

l. The Group and its Operations

#

.3

TRG Pakistan Limited (the company) was incorporated in Pakistan as a public limited company on December 2, 2002 under the
Companies Ordinance, 1984 and is listed on the Karachi Stock Exchange. The company obtained certificate of commencement
of business on February 27, 2003. The operations of the company effectively started on April 11, 2003, The ragistered office of
the company is situated at 7th Floor, Block B, Finance and Trade Centre, Sharah-e-Faisal, Karachi, Pakistan. The Lompany
obtained a license on May |4, 2003 from the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) to undertake verture capital

investment as a Non-Banking Finance Company in accardance with the Non-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and
Regulation} Rules, 2003 (NBFC Rules).

The principal activity of the holding company is to directly and / or indirectly acquire, manage and / or maintain the business
of telephone answering services, call centres and other business process guLsourcing companies as well as related software
products. To date, the helding company has acquired calf centre operations in North America, Africa and Europe through its
subsidiary, The Resaurce Group International Limited, Bermuda (TRGIL), which include campanies that are presently experiencing
losses. The holding campany has adopted multiple strategies ta improve their profitability and cash flows by a combination of
cost rationalisation, operational efficiencies and off shore migration of labour.

As stated in note 18 TRGIL has not consummated a qualified public affering within the specified time period. Accordingly, the
AlG rvestors may cause the subsidiary (TRGIL) (o liquidate its assets or 1o force the sale of the subsidia ry's ordinary shares 1o
a third party. If AIG investors exercise this right, then TRGIL has the right to purchase back its preference shares from AIG
Investars at a price not less than the original issue price (USD 1.12). The total preference shares of AlG investors amounted to
USD 30 million. Depending on the option chosen by AIG fnvestors, if any, the liquidation of assets could cause significant Liquidity
prablems for TRGIL. If AlG investors were to force TRGIL's current ordinary shareholders to sell their shares (ligndity event},
which includes the holding company, the holding company would only receive a proportionate share of the proceeds after
deducting USD 30 miilion and pre-determined percentage in excess of USD 30 million attributable to AIG investors.

TRGIL has not as yet been netified by AIG investors of their intention to cause TRGIL to sell its assets.

The management is confident that AIG investors would continue with their investment in preference shares of TRGIL and shal|
not exeraise the afarernentioned option in the forseeable future.

TRG PAKISTAN LTD.
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June 30, June 30,
Motes 1009 2008

{Rupees in thousand)
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Lash generated fream / {unlised in} operations 33 (110,766)
Profit received en bank balances / advances 0|
Taxes paid (26,630
Mark up / interest paid on borrowings / leases (178,210
Long term deposits and prepayments 9115
(194, 964}
Net cash {used In} cperating activities {305,740

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of property, plant and equipment (289.192)
Purchase of intangible assets (48,550
Praceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 116,744
Cash paid for acquisition of subsicharies-ner of cash acquired (16,48%)
kepayment of leng term leans

Net cash {used inj investing activities (237.487)

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Dividend Paid (70.795)
Proceeds apainst issue of shares of TRGIL |

Preference shares issued to AlG by TRGIL 18.9 -
Repayment of hatulity against assats subject 10 finance leasa {37.243}
Borrowings -net 367,791 |
Net cash generated from financing activities 259 753
Effects of axchange rare changes 109,153
Net decreasr in cash and cash equivalents (E74,321)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginming of the year 495,433
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 15 321,112

The annexed notes fram | o 40 form an integr:-il part of these censolidated hinancial statements.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED |UNE 30..100‘?
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

TRG PAKISTAN LTD.

Attributable to share holders of the holding company

Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital Capital reserva  Revenue reserve_ T,::;Z:I Total
{lass ¥ Class B Total -Fareign Exchange Acomulared |
Translation losses
Reserve -
Not tremmressrnrassnssssssnsansarenrees (RUPRES N thousand).....ccoococvniiiiiieiinaiinis

Balance as at July |, 2007 3,733,907 120,000 3,853,907 56,474 (1,455,860} 157,400 2,711,921
Net loss for the year . - - - (1.530,900)  (564,030) (2,096.930)
Conversion of class 'B' shares inta class 'A' shares 120,000  (120,000) - - - -

Adjustment for business combination - - - - - 37,095 37,095
{apital contributien by mincirty - net - - - - - 632,923 632,923
Currency translation difference - - - 145,002 - 29 371 174,373
Lonvertible preference shares - equity component |8 - - - - - 32.760 32,740
Issuance of employee stock options by TRGIL 251 - . - - . 129,129 22%.129
Balance as at June 30, 2008 3,853,907 - 3853907 201476 (2.986760) 652648 1721271
Net loss for the year - - - - (1,766,283) (150,118 (1,916,401)
Acquistion of Minority interest .6 - - - - - (44,381) (44,361)
Currency transiation difference - - - 87,917 - (16,337 204,254
Divdend paid to shareholder's of holding company - - - - (3,619) - (3,619)
Distribution made te the minerity shareholders - - - - - (68,153} (68,153}
Lass on distnbution to minority shareholders 30 - - - - : 60,140 60,160
Issuance of employee stock options by TRGIL 251 : - - - . 181,701 181,701
Balance as at June 30, 2009 3,853,907 385307 289393 (41S6.661) 748214 13485

The annexed notes from | to 40 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009
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TRG PAKISTAN LTD.

June 30, June 30,
Note 2007 {Rupees in thousand) 108

Revenue 3b |1,147,171

{ost of service delivery 15 (8,780,186)
Gross profit 2,366,985

Other operating Income 26 55,359

Administrative and general expenses 2T (3,730,933}
Dperating loss (1.308,589)
Other charges 28 (156.599)
Operating loss (1,465,188)
Finance cost 29 (266,868)
Net loss before tax (1,732,056)
Taxation 3 (124,185)
Distributian to minority shareholders of indirect subsidiaries in excess of their interest 30 (60,160}
Net loss after tax (1,916.491)

Attributable to ;

Shareholders of the holding company (1,766,283) ETET
Minority interest (150,118) :
(1,916,401)
: (Rupees)
Loss per share - basic 32 (4.58)

The annexed notes from | to 40 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

]

Chief Executive Officer Director



CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

AS AT [tINE 30, 2009

TRG PAKISTAN LTD.

June 30, June 30,
Mote 2009 2008
ASSETS (Rupees in thousand)
ASSETS
NON CURRENT ASSETS
Fixed assets
Praperty, plant and equipment f 1,008,520
Intangibles ] 2,610,075
3,618,595
Long term investments 8 2,124
Leng term loans and advances 9 14,844
Long term deposits 10 59.260
Long term prepayments -
3,694 815
CURRENT ASSETS -
Stack-in-trade 10,550
Trade debts 12 1,773,933
Loans and advances 13 50,298
Short term deposits and prepayments 14 260,057
Interest / profit accrued 11,997
(ther receivabies 83,130
Advance rax 50,597
Cash and bank balances 15 321,112
1,561,674
TOTAL ASSETS 6,256,499
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Share capital
- Authorised share capital I 7,330,000
- Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital I6 o 3,853,907 5 X i
Capital reserve 18%.393 L
Accumulated losses (4.756,662) o
Minority interest 148,114 :
134,852
LIABILITIES
Non current liabilities
Lonp term finances i7 381,637
Liabilittes against assets subject to finance lease 19 13,752 23
Retirement benefit abligation 20 1,669 | 2
Defarred tax liabilities | 107,134
Long term advances Tfrom customers 21 101,500
Dthers 12,333 5
624,025 P
Current liabilities -
Trade and other payables 22 1,979,593
Convertible preferance shares |18 2,436,000
Short term borrowings 23 809,665
Accrued markup on barrowings 66,137
Current portion of - long term finances 17 133,341
Current portion of - liabilities against assets subject 1o finance lease 19 30,5%2
Income taxes payable } 42,2714
5497621
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 6,256,499
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 24
The annexed notes from | to 40 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
Chief Executive Officer Director 60



L DT ) L W (==

~. saitors’ Report To The Members

We have audited the annexed consolidated financial statements comprising consolidated balance sheet of TRG Pakistan Limited (the holding
company) and its subsidiary company, The Resource Group International Limited, Bermuda (TRGIL) as at June 30, 2009 and the related
consolidated profit and loss account, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated cash flow statement together with
the notes forming part thereof, for the year then ended. We have also expressed a separate opinion an the financial statements of the
holding company. The consalidated financial statements of the subsidiary company were audited by another firm of auditors and our
opinion, in so far as it relates to the amounts included for the subsidiary, 1s based solely on the report of such other auditors.

These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the holding company's management. Qur responsibility is to express an
opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit.

Dur audit was conducted in accordance with the Internationat Standards on Auditing and accordingly included such tests of accounting
records and such other auditing procedures as we onsidered necessary in the circumstances.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements, based on our examination as explained above, present fairly the financial position
of TRG Pakistan Limited and its subsidiary company as at June 30, 2009 and the results of their operations, changes in equity and cash
flaws for the year then ended.

Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to note |.3 to the annexed censolidated financial statements which states that effective
October 4, 2008 the preference shareholders of TRGIL have the right to force hiquidation of TRGIL's assets or ta require the TRGIL's
ordinary shares to be sold. However, the management is confident that TRGIL will be able to continue as a going concern as the company
estimates that the preference shareholders would continue with their investment in the preference shares of TRGIL. Accordingly, the financial
statements have been prepared under the 'going concern’ assumption.

Karachi A. F. Ferguson & Co.
Dated: October 30, 2009 Chartered Accountants
Audit Engagement Partner: Saad Kaliya

T TRG PAKISTAN LTD.
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

27. Corresponding Figures

For better presentation the follawing reclassifications in the corresponding figures have been made:

Description Head of account of the
financial statements for the
year ended June 30, 2008

Auditor's remuneration Other liabilities

Fayable 10 the Provident Fund Other liabitities

Accrued salaries Other liabilities

Withelding tax from employees Other liabilities

and suppiiers

28. Date Of Authorisation

Head of account of the
financial statements for the
year ended June 30, 2009

Accrued expenses
Accrued expenses
Accrued expenses

Accrued expenses

These financial statements were authorised for issue on October 30, 2009 by the Board of Directors of the {ompany.

Chief Executive Officer

Director

TRG PAKISTAN LTYD,

Amount
{Rupees in
thousand)

3,350
(l
188

19

56
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TRG PAKISTAN LTD.

24.5 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities

The carrying values of al| the financial assets and liabilities reflectad in the financial statements approximate to their fair values.

25. Capital Risk Management

The company's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the company's ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide returns far sharehalders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to mamtain an eptimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adpust the capital structure, the company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders,
Issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

26.Related party disclosures

The related parties of the company camprise 1ts subsidiaries, undertakings with common directorship, staff retirement benefir plan and key management
personnel and their close family members, Transactions with retated parties are carried out on the basis of motually agreed terms. Balances due fram and 10
related parties are disclosed in the respective notes to these financial statements. Transactions with related parties, other than 'investment in subsdiary’ and
‘remuneration (o key management personnel' as disclosed in note 23, are as follows:

Related party Relationship june 30, June 30,
with the Company 1009 2008
(Rupees in thousand)

Cost recovery of assets
TRG (Private) Limited Indirect subsidiary

Interest income on advance
Virtual World (Private) Limited Indirect subsidiary 636

Management fee income
TRGIL Subsidiary 18,105

Contribution to the provident fund 122

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009
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24.3 Credit risk

Credit risk represents the accounting loss that would be recognised at the reporting date if counter parties fail completely 1o perform as rontracted.

Credit risk arises [rom cash equivalents, deposits with banks, as well as credit exposures to customers and other counterparties which include trade
depasits and ather receivables. Qut of the total hinancial assets, those that are subject to cradit risk amount to Rs 13,803 million (2008: Rs 73.575
millien}.

Total bank balance of Rs 3.595 million placed with banks have a short term credit rating of "A-1" and above.

The maximum exposure to credic risk as at June 30, 2009, along with comparative is tabulated below:

june 30, June 30,
1009 2008
Note
Finaneial accats (Rupees in thousand)
Trade deposits 15
Accrued mark up 3,131
Advance to a related party 243l f.165
Dthar raceivahlas B31
Balances with banlks 3.585

13,803

24.3.1  Advance to a related party relates to an advance provided to Yirtual Werld (Private) Limited against a promissory note due on june 30, 2008.
The note has been past dus for 12 months as at |une 30, 2009.

The management does not expect any losses from non-performance by the counterparties,
The campany does not hald any collateral against these assets.
Financial assets do net contain any impaired or non-performing assets.

24.4 Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulties in meeting obligations associated with financial liabitities. Prudent liquidity risk
management implies maintaining sufficient cash, the availability of funding through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities and the ability
to close out market positions, A major portion of the company's financial liabilities are obligations duz to the company's related parties, therefore the
management believes that the company is not exposed to liquidity risk regarding those balances as the terms of repayments can be negotiated. Further,

the managament helieves that it will be able te fulfill its ather financial obligations from the company's future cashflows. A matwrity analysis of financial
liabilities is as follows:

Maturity upto  Maturity after Total Totai
ane year ohe year 2009 2008
R g d '
Einancial Liabilities {Rupees in thousand) {Rupees in thousand)
Liabilities agamst assets subject to finance lease 403 &18 | 024
Accrued and other liabilities 10437 i 10 437
Payable to related parties - current account 12.095 i 12.095
71,940 618 23,558

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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23.1 No remuneration was pard 1o the Chief Executive and directors of the company during che year (2008: Nil).

23.2 Certain executives of an indivect subsidiary are providing services to the company and no remuneration is charged in respect of those executives by that
indirect subsidiary.

24.Financial Instruments And Related Disclosures

24.1 Financial risk management

The company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including interest rate risk and currency risk}, credit risk and liquidity
risk.

Financial instruments by category are as follows:
June 30, June 30,
2009 1008

(Rupees in thousand)
Financial Assets - Leans and receivables

Long term deposit 15
Advance to a related party 8,165
Accrued mark up 3,137
{ther recevabies g3
{ash and bank balances 3,617

13,825

Financial Liabililies - Amortised cost

Liability against asset subject to finance lease 87
Accrued & other liabilities 10,437
Payable to related parties - currant account 12,095

13 403

Risks managed and measured by the company ara explained below:

24 2 Market risk
24.2.1. Interest / mark-up rate risk
Interest rate risk 15 the risk that the fair value or future cash flows from a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in marker interest rates.
The management believes that its interest rate exposure is not significant to the company's financial position.
24.2.2 Currency risk
Currency risk arises mainly where receivables and payables exist due to transactions entered into foreign currencies, The company primarily has fereign

currency exposures in Pak Rupee, however the company has not hedged its foreign currency exposures, as the company believes that forergn currency
exposure 1§ not significant to the company's financial pasition and perfarmance.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009
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June 30, June 30,
2009 2008
Note
. (Rupees in thousand)
21. Cash Generated from Operations
Net profit / {loss} for the year 166,324
Adjustments far non-cash and other items:
Depraciation 535
(Reversal of impairment charge) / impairment charge
on investment in a subsidiary (714.133)
{nterest on advances and return on bank balances (810}
Finance charges on assets subject to finance lease - 103
Unrealised exchange loss / (gain) 1,147
{Gain) / loss on disposal of fixed assets (17)
Working capital changes 2.1 11,293
(761.882)
4,444
1[.] Working capital changes
(Increase) / decrease in current assets
Prepayments 1
Other receivables 5,664
Advance to a refated party 5,835
11,501
Increase / {decrease) in current liabilities
Accrued and other fiabilities 20,989
Payable to related parties (21,197
(208) S
11,293 h

22. Dividend

Interim dividend was declared during the current year amounting to Rs 3.854 million. However, certain shareholders have waived their right io the dividend amounting
to Rs 0,235 million,

13. Remuneration of Chief Executive, Director and Executives

The aggregate amount charged in the financial statements for remuneration, including all benefits to executives of the company is as follows:

1009 1008

Executives Executives

e { RUUPERS iN thousand)......_....

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Managerial remuneration 132 215
Hause rant 34 405
Medical allowance 1 %
Weilities il 20
Total 1200 ) 1,500
kumber of persons | |
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june 30, June 30,
2009 2008
Note (Rupees in thousand)
6.2 Auditors’ remuneration
Beidit fea i 100
Fee for review of half yearly financial statements 400
Fee for the audit of consalidated financial statements 2 5MH
(ther certifications |00
(ut of packet 201

4,381

16.3 This includes Rs 0.100 million (2008: Nil) in respect of penalties imposed by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan {SECF) due to failure
to furnish a copy of the Annual Report together with the copies of the financial statements within the stipulated time.

17. Other Charges

Exchange loss 1,147
Worker's Welfare Fund 15,639
16,786

18. Other Income

Gain on disposal of fixed assets I?

{9. Finance Cost

Finance charges on asset subject to finance lease 103

20.Profit / (Loss) Per Share

Profit / {loss) for the year 166,320
(Number of shares)
Number of shares outstanding during the year 385,390,700
(Rupees)
Basic earnings / (loss) per share .99

Thare were o dilutive patential erdinary shares outstanding as at June 30, 2009 and 2608,

5l
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14. Payable to Related Parties - Current account

Name of related party Nature of
relationship

TRGIL Subsidiary 9,244
Trakker (Private) Limited Associated company 415
TRG Holding LLC |ndirect subsidiary 1438
12,095
June 30, June 30,
2008 2007
Note

{Rupees in thousand)

15. Revenue

Management Fee 5.1 28,105
Return on bank balances '),
Interest income on advances 5.2 718
Cost recovery for assets 15.3 -

28.91%

15.1 This fee has been charged by the company under the terms of the Management Service Agreement (the agreement) entered during the year ended June
30, 2009 between the company and TRGIL. In accordance with the terms of the agreement, TRGIL has agreed to pay the company an amount of USD
350,000 (Rs 28.105 million) in compensation for the services rendered by the company upto the date of the agreement. The revenue for the services
have not been accrued in the prior years as it was not probable at that time that the company will be able to recover any amount for services provided.

15.2 This incledes interest income on advances to refated parties in the current year amounting te Rs 0.696 million (2008: 1.083 million).

- 15.3 This represents monthly charges recoverable from TRG {Private) Limited (a subsidiary of TRGIL), for assets urilised by it

(RS

=

o june 30, June 30,

= 2009 2008

2 16. Other Operating Expenses Note (Rupees in thousand)

2

E Salaries, wages and other benefits 6.1 2412

:_'I Rent 563

= & At:l_veftising _ 43

s e Printing, stationery and peniodicals 3,854

gl Travelling and conveyance 198

E o Insurance 889

Bt Communication 1.39¢

Sy Legal and professional charges 4,201

= Ll Auditors' remuneration 6.2 4,301

o= Depreciation 3 535

- Repairs and maintenance 154

= E Miscellaneous expenses 6.3 284

2 19,850

2 = -

Eg 16.1 This includes company's contribution to employees’ retirement berefit fund amoanting to Rs 0.122 million (2008: Rs 0.134 millian).
L=
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The preferred stock is convertible inte ordinary shares of TRGIL and axchangeable into the company's share capital at the apuion of the AlG nvestors,
Further, 1n case TRGIL has not consummated a qualified public offering on or before the third annwversary of the initial closing date, the AlG investars
have the right to cause TRGIL to sell to a third party all or a partion of either (i} TRGIL's issued erdinary shares; or (ii) the consolidated assets
of TRGIL and its further subsidiaries. In case the AIG investors exercise this right, TRGIL has the right to purchase back the preference shares at a price

not less than the original issue price of USD |2 per share.

As the third anniversary of the initial closing date has passed on October 4, 2008 and TRGIL has not consummated 2 qualified offering, the MG nvestors.
now have the right 1o exercise any one of the aforementioned options. However, todate TRGIL has not been notified by the AlG investors of any inteation

to cause |t 1o sell the assets.

hs of lune 30, 2009 the AlG investors have invested the full ameunt of USD 30 million committed to TRGIL.

12. Liabilities Against Assets Subject to Finance Lease

3.

Future minimum lease payments under finance [ease together with the present value of the net minimum lease payments are as follows:

2009

2008

Minimum
lease payment

Present
value lease payments value

Minimum Present

venranerranaess LRUPEES iN thousand) ..o iniiiiinan.

Within one year 408 305
After anie year but not more than five years b8 566
Total mmmum |ease payments 026 871
Less: amounts representing finance charges |55 -
Present value of minimum lease payments 871 87!
Less: current portion shown under current hiabilities 305 305

568 5éb

2.1 Rentals are payable in monthly instalments by September 2011, The leases carries a floating rate of KIBOR pius 350 basis points with floor of 12% and
ceiling of 22% (2008: Nil). At the end of the lease term, the ownership of the assets shall b transfered to the company against security deposit paid.

Accrued and Other Liabilities

Lakat payable

Accrued expenses

Warker's Welfare Fund payable
Bank commission

Unelaimed Dindend

(ther Labilities

June 30, June 30,
Note 2009 2008

{Rupees in thousand)

131 436
4,155

15,639

269

07

3,013

11,584

13.1 This represents zakat deducted from the interim dividend paid during the year. The amount of zakat payable a5 at June 30, 2009 was deposited into the

Central Zakat Fund, subsequent to the year ended June 30, 2009.
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June 30, June 30,
1009 2008

0. Cash and Bank Balances

(Rupees in thousand)

Balances with banks in

- glrrent accounts 1,229
- savings accounts 2,366
3,595
Cash in hand 13,
3,611

10.1 The balances in saving accounts bear markup ranging from 5% to 8% per annum (2008: 0.25% to 5% per annum).

1.2 The total balance of cash and bank includes an amount of Rs 0.977 million which relates to funds restricted for the payment of dividend.

1.  Share Capital

1009 2008
Number Rupees in Number Rupees in
of shares thousand of shares  thousand
Authorised share capital
Ordinary class 'A' shares of Rs 10 each 120,000,000 1,200,000
Ordinary class 'B' shares of Ry |0 each 13,600,000 130,000

733,000,000 7,330,000

Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital

Ordinary class ‘A shares of Rs 10 2ach
shares allotted for consideration paid in cash 315,185,141 3,157 651
shares allotted for consideration other than cash 9624 918 24,250

385,390 700 3.853.907

ILI On February 27, 2008, L. upon expiry of five years from the date of issuance of cernificate of commencement of business of the company. all issued
and outstanding class '8 shares have been automatically convertad mte class ‘A shares.

1.2 On July 25, 2007 TRGIL entered into an equity subscription and sharehglders agreement with 10B Infrastructure Fund LP {IDB). |n accordance with
the term of the agreement, TRGIL issued 12,396,694 shares ar USD 1.21 per share resulting i gross proceeds of USD IS million. 1DB has an option
t invest 3 burther USD |3 million into TRGIL as ordinary shares at a per shara price of USD |.21, This option expires on the second anniversary of
the date the agreement was entered into. Further, IDB has the right to exchange all or any lesser porrion of its ordinzry shares into a predefined
number of freely tradable shares of the company.

1.3 On October 4, 2005, TRGIL entered into a series A preferred stock purchase agreement with a consortium of investors. comprising of AlG
Global Emerging Markets Fund II, L, A1G Annuity Insurance Company, American General Life Insurance {ompany, and Yariable Annuity Life Insurance
Company (the AlG lnvestors). The agreemeni allowed for the purchase of up to 26,785,714 shares of Series A Preforred Stock for an initially determined
purchase price of USD 1.12 per share. The total commitment amount was up to USD 30 million.

The preferred stock is entitled to the same voting rights and dividend entitlements as ordinary shares, but ranks higher in the event of hiquidaten,
which 15 defined as a change of control or qualified public offering, and ara entitled to proceeds computed using pre-determined formulz in accordance
with the agraement. The praferred stock is also entitled to trigger event dividends at the rate of 8% per annum which accrue only if certain conditions
precedent and tovenants are not met and only for the duration that the company remains in breach of such conditions and rovenants. There were
no triggering events during the year ended June 30, 2009 requiring such an accrual or payment.
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6. Long Term Deposits

TRG PAKISTAN LTD.

5.2 This represents the difference between 'recoverable amount’ and 'carrying valug' of the investment. The recoverable amount of the asset has been calculated
with reference to the Tair value less cost to sell' of the asset. As the 'fair value less cost to sell' cannot be determined with reference to an active market
ar & recent market transaction, the asset's fair value less cost to sell has been determined by drscounting projected future cashflows.

During the year ended June 30, 2009, the company recorded a reversal of impairment in the value of its investment in TRGIL amounting to Re. 774.133
million. The Company has recognised the appreciation in the value of its investment in TRG International due to the expacted cash inflows of i1s new business
imtiatives, mest sigmificantly the expected commercial launch of 1ts SATMAP technology and decrease m the risk Iree rate used to calculate the discount

rate for the discounted cash flows.

Rent
Lease deposit
Dthers

Advance to a Related Party -

Considered good

Yirtual World {Private) Limited

June 30,
2009
Note

June 30,
2008

(Rupees in thousand)

104
1

183

fl 6,165

7.1 This represents advance to Yirtual World (Private) Limited {a subsidiary of TRGIL), at the rate of § percent (2008: 9 percent) per znnum for operational
requirements. Principal amount alongwith the accumulated interest (note 8) was receivable on June 30, 2008,

Accrued Markup

Markup accrued on
5a¥ings accounts
advance given to ¥irtuzl World {Private)
Limited {an indirect subsidiary)

Other Receivables

Recervable from related parties - considered good
Othars

9.1 Due from following related parties:

Name of related party

TRG (Private) Limited
TRGIL

Mature of relationship

Indiract Subsidiary
Subsidiary

2

3,107

3,137

9.1 83l

831

g3l
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

3.1 The assets under the head 'Computers and office equipment’ include assets having cost of Rs 19.054 million and 2 net book valua of Nil (2008: cost
of Rs 19.054 millien and net boak value of Nil) which are under the custody of and are being used by TRG (Private) Limited, a subsidiary of TRGIL
from whom the entire cost has been recavered (refer to note 15.3).

Intangible Assets - Computer Software

(Rupees in
Computer software thousand)
At June 30, 2009 & 2008
Cost 47
Accumulated Amortisation (267)
Net book value
AmOrisation rate 33 3%,
June 30, June 30,
2009 2008
Note
5. Long-term Investments (Rupees in thousand)
Investment in a related party - at cost
The Resgurce Groug International Limited (TRGIL) -a subsidiary
60,450,000 (2008: 60,450,000) ordinary shares 5.1 4,908 540 4,|t6,645
Less: Accumulated Impairment 5.1.2 (1,376,023 (2,641 941)
153,517 | 474,704

3.0 This represents investment in a subsidiary incorporated in Bermuda. Par value of each share is USD 0.01 and the addivonal paid in capital per
share amaunts to USD 0.99. The percentage of ownership in TRGIL 1s 82.3% (2008: 82.3%) whereas the percentage of voting interest is 60.31%
(2008:60.31%).

June 30, June 30,
Note 2009 2008
o {Rupees in thousand)
5.1.1  Movement in investment at cost
Opening balance - July | 4,116,645
Currency translation difference 791,895
4,908,540
5.1.2 Movement in accumulated impairment
Opening balance - July | 2,641,941
(Revercal of impairment) / impairment charge 52 (774,133)
Currency translation difference 508.215 IR
1,376,023 Cgla
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Property, Plant and Equipment

At June 30, 2007

Cost

Accumulated depreciation
Net book value

Year ended June 30, 2008
Transfer from leased assets
- Lost

- Accumulated depreciation

Depreciation charge for the year
Net book value as at June 30, 2008

Year ended June 30, 2009
Additions

Disposal

- Cost

- Less: accumulated depreciation

Depreciation charge for the year
Net book value as at June 30, 2009

At June 30, 2008

(ost

Accumulated depreciation
Net book value

At June 30, 2009
Cost

Accumulated depreciation
Net book value

Depreciaticn rate

i TRG PAKISTAN LTD.

Owned Lease Total
Computers Mator Computers Motor
& Office Yehicles & Office Yehicles
Equipment Equipment
eeermrneneene- RUPEES i thousand)........c...coceevieeci,

1,184 2,935 19,054 23,173

(831) {1.690) (17,598) (20,119)

353 1,245 1,456 3,054

19,054 - | (19,059) | :

{I?,ﬂﬁa’-‘l] l - |9£]54 .

{(212) (585) (1,456) (2,263)

131 660 - 191

114 - - 1.475 1.589

(412) : : o

387 - . | 367

(45) : - {45)

(91) (346) - {98) (535)

109 314 = 1,377 1,800

20,238 2,935 - 23,173

(20.107) (2,275) . (22.382)

Bl 60 & _ 79

19,940 2,935 475 24,350

{19,831) (2,621) g (98) (22.550)

169 314 . 13171800

1% to 33.33% 10% 313.33% 20%

4%
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

FA |

2.12

2.13

2.14

2.10.2 Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into USD (the functional currency) using the exchange rates prevailing an
the date of transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are transiated into USD using the
exchange rate at the balance sheet date. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions
and from the translations at the year end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabificies denominated in fareign currencies
are recognised m the profit and loss account.
2.10.3 Foreign currency translations

The resuits and financial pasitien of the company are translated into PKR (presentation currency) as foliows:
(1} assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are translated at the closing rate at the date of that balance sheet:
(1) income and expenses for each income stacement are translated at average exchange rates; and
(i)  all resulting exchange differences are recognised as a separate component of equity.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the balance sheet as cost. For the purpose of the cash flow statement, cash and cash eguivalents
cansist of cash in hand and deposits in banks.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.
The company derecognises a financial asset or a portion of financial asset when, and oniy when, the company loses control of the
contractual rights that comprise the financial asset or portion of financial asset. While a finandial liability or part of financial liability
1s derecognised from the halance sheet when, and anly when, it is extinguished i.2. wnen the obligation specified in the contract is
discharged, cancefled or expired. Any gain or loss on the recognition or de-recognition of the financial assets and liabilities is taken to
profit and loss account.

Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset when the company has a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts
and intends either to settle these on net basis or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Staff retirement benefits

The company operates a defined contribution plan (i.e. recognised provident fund scheme) for all its permanent employees, Equal

monthly contribitions @ 6.5% of the gross salary are made ta the fund, both by the company and by its employees. The assets of
the fund are held separately under the control of the Trustees. Contributions made by the company are charged to income for the year.

TRG PAKISTAN LTD.
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1.8 Revenue recognition

Prafit / interest on bank deposits and advances 1s recorded on accrual basss.

Management fee is recogmised as the services are rendered and it is prabable that the economic benehits associated with the
transactions will flow to the enticy

Dividend income is recagnised when the right to receive dividend 15 established.
2.9 Taxation

1.9.1 Current Taxation

The company is exempt from tax upto June 30, 2014 under clause 101 of Part | of the Secand Scehdule to the Income Tax
Crdinance, 2001.

2.9.2 Deferred taxation

The campany accounts for deferred taxation en all temporary differences using the [iability method. Deferred tax assets are
recognised on any deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and available tax credits and are restricted to the extent
that it is probable that future 1axable profits will be available against which the temporary differences, unused tax losses and
available tax credits ¢an be utilised.

Deferred tax is calcutated at the rates that are expected to apply to the period when the related temporary difterences reverse,
based on tax rates that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the balance sheet gate.

A5 at June 30, 2009 the company has unused tax losses on which no deferred tax asset has been booked as the company expects
that such losses will expire before tax year 2014 and will not be available for utilisation against the taxable profits subsequent
to tax year 2014.

2.9.3 Provisions
A provision is recognised when the company has a present, legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events and It is
probable that an cutflow of resources embodying ecanamic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate of the amount can be made. Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current
best estimate.
2.10 Foreign currency
2.10.1 Functional and presentation currency
|tems included in the financial statements are measured using United States Dollars (USD}, the functional currency of the

company. However, these financial statements are presented in Pakistan Rupees (PKR), which is the presentation currency as
determined by the company.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009
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2.6.2 Property, plant and equipment subject to finance leases and related depreciation

Assets subject to finance lease are initially recorded at the lower of the present vaiue of minimum lease payments under the
lease agreements and the fair value of the leased assets. The related obligations under the lease less financial charges allocated
to future periods are shown as liabilities. These financial charges are allocated to accounting periods in a manner sa as to
provide a constant periodic rate of charge on the ouzstanding liabilities.

Depreciation on assets subject to finance lease is provided on the same basis as the company's owned assets.
2.6.3 Intangible assets
These represent softwares developed and licenses acquired.

Intangible assets are recognised in the financial statements, if and only if, it is probable that the future ecariomic benafits that
are attributabie to the assets will flow to the company and the cost of the assets can be measured reliably. These are stated
at cost |ess accumulated amortisation and any identified impairment Joss.

Intangible assets are amortised using the straight line method over their estimated useful lives at the rate specified in note 4
and 1s charged to the profit and loss account.

Useful lives af intangible assets are reviewed at each halance sheet date and adjusted if the impact on amortisation is significant.
2.6.4 Impairment of fixed assets

The company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that assets may be impaired. If such indication
exists, the carrying amaunts of such assers are reviewed to assess whether they are recorded in excess of their recoverable
amount. Where carrying values exceed the respactive recoverable amaunts, assets are written down to their recoverable amounts
and the resulting impairment charge is recognised in the profit and loss account. The recoverable amaunt of fixed assets is
the greater of fair value less cost to sell and value in use.

2,7  Long term investment
Investment in a subsidiary company is carried at cost, less impairment, if any.

The company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that the investment in subsidiary company may be
impaired. If such indication exists, the carrying amount of investment is reviewed to assess whether it is recorded in excess of it's
recoverable amount. Where carrying value exceeds the recoverable amount, investment is written down te it's recoverable amount and
the resulting impairment charge is recognised in the profit and loss account,

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be linked objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised, the impairment loss is reversed through the income statement, & reversal of an impairment
loss shall not result in the asset's carrying amount exceeding that which would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years.
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There are other accounting standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting standards
that are mandatory for accounting periods beginning on or after Jily |, 2009 but are considered not to be relevant

or have any significant effect to the company's operations and are therefore not detailed in these financial
statements.

2.5 Critical accounting judgments and estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards requires the use of
certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management te exercise its judgment in the process of
applying the campany's accounting policies.

In the process of applying the company's accounting policies, management has made certain estimates and

judgments which are significant to the financial statements, relating to impairment testing of long term investment
(note 2.7).

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on histeric experience and other factors,
including expectation of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the year in which the estimate is revised and in any future year affected.

2.6 Fixed assets
2.6.1 Owned property, plant and equipment and related depreciation
Property, plant and equiptment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment, If any.
Depreciation is charged to the income ever straight line method so as to write off the historical cost of the assets aver their
estimated useful |ives at the rates stated in note 3. Depreciation on additions 15 charged from the month in which an asset 13

put to use and on disposals upto the month immediately preceding disposal.

Maintenance and narmal repairs are charged to income as and when incurred. Major renewals and improvements, if any, are
capitalised when 11 15 probable that respective future economic benefits will flow to the company

Asset's residual values and useful lives are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted if impact on depreciation 13
signticant.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when ne future econamic benefits are expected
from its use o disposal. Gains and lesses on disposals are determined by comparing the sale proceeds with the carrying amount
of the relevant assets. These are recognised in the profit and loss account.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009
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2. Summary Of Significant Accounting Policies

2.1  Accounting convention

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except as otherwise disclosed.

2.2 Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan.
Approved accounting standards comprise of such International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) issued by the [nternational
Accounting Standards Board as are notified under the provisions of the Companies Ordinance, 1984, provisions of and directives
issued under the Companies Ordinance, 1984, In case requirements differ, the provisions or directives of the Companies
Ordinance, 1984 shall prevail,

1.3 Standards, amendments to published standards and new interpretations effective during the year ended |une 30, 2009

IFRS 7, Financial instruments: Disclosures', effective for the annual periods beginning on or after July |, 2008 introduces new
disctosures relating to financial instruments and does not have any impact on the classification and measurement of the
company's financial instruments.

There are other new standards and interpretations that were mandatory for accounting periods beginning on or after July |,
2008 but are considered not to be relevant or have any significant effect to the company's financial statements and are therefore
not disclosed in these financial statements.

2.4 Standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting standards that are not yet effective.

|AS | (Revised} 'Presentation of financial statements', {effective for annual periods beginning on or after |anuary |, 2009).
The revised standard prohibics the presentation of items of income and expenses {that is, 'non-owner changes in equity') in
the statement of changes in equity, requiring ‘non-owner changes in equity' to be presented separately from owner changes
in equity. All non-gwner changes in equity will be required te be shown in a performance statement, but entities can choose
whether to present ane perfarmance statement (the statements of comprehensive income) or two statements (the income
statement and statement of camprehensive incame). Where the entities restate ar reclassify comparative infermation, they
will be required to present a restated balance sheet as at the beginning comparative period in addition to the current requirement
to present balance sheets at the end of the current period and comparative period. The adoption of this revised standard will
only impact the presentanion of the financial statements,

|AS 36 (Amendment), ‘Impairment of assers” {effective for annual periods beginning an or after January |, 2009). As per the
new requirements, where fair value less costs to sell is calculated on the basis of discounted cash flows. disclosures equivalent

to those for value-in-use calculation should be made . The amendment will only impact the presentation of the financial
statements.

|AS 38 {(Amendment}, 'Intangible assets’ (effective for annual periods beginning on or after January |, 2009). The amended
standard states that a prepayment may only be recognised in the event that payment has been made in advance of obtaming
right of access 1o goods or receipt of services. Adoption of the amendment i3 not expected to have significant effect on the

company s financial statements.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

The Company And Its Operations

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

TRG Pakistan Limited (the company) was incorporated in Pakistan as a public limited company on December 2, 2002 under the
Companmies Ordinance, 1984 and is listed an the Karachi Stock Exchange. The company obtained certificate of commencement
of business on February 27, 2003. The operations of the company effectively started on Aprif |1, 2003. The registered office of
the campany is situated at 7th Floor, Block B, Finance and Trade (entre, Sharah-e-Faisal, Karachi, Pakistan. The company
obtained a license on May 14, 2003 from the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) to undertake venture capital
nvestment as a Non-Banking Finance Company in accordance with the Non-Banking Finance Companies (Estabiishment and
Regulation) Rules, 2003 (NBFC Rules).

The principal activity of the company is to directly and / or indirectly acquire, manage and / or maintan the business of telephone
answering services, call centres and other business process outsourcing companies, as well as related software products. To date,
the company has acquired call centre operations in North America, Africa and Europe through its subsidiary, The Resource Group
International Limited, Bermuda (TRGIL), which include companies that are presently experiencing losses. The company has
adopted multiple strategies to improve their profitability and cash flows by a combinatien of cost rationalisation, operational
efficiencies and off shore migration of labour.

These financial statements are separate financial statements of the company in which investment in subsidiary is accounted for
in accordance with accounting policy as stated 1n note 2.7 and is not consolidated.

Rule 22(a) of the NBFC Rules has been relaxed for the company permitting the company to expose upto 100% of its equity
attributable to venture capital investment in its subsidiary.

As stated in note t1.3 TRGIL has not consummated a qualified public offering within the specified time period. Accordingly, the
AlG investors may cause the subsidiary (TRGIL) to liquidate its assets ar to force the sale of the subsidiary's ordinary shares to
a third party, If AlG investors exercise this right, then TRGIL has the right 1o purchase back its preference shares from AIG
Investors at a price not less than the ariginal issue price (USD 1.12 per share). The 1otal preference shares of AlG investors
amounted to USD 30 million. Depending on the option chosen by AlG investors, if any, the liguidation of assets could cause
signrficant liquidity problems for TRGIL. If AlG investars were to force TRGIL's current ordinary shareholders to sell their shares
(liquidity event), which includes the company, the company would only receive a proportionate share of the proceeds after
deducting USD 30 million and pre-determined percentage in excess of USD 30 million attributable to AlG investors.

TRGIL has not as yet been notified by AIG investors of their intention to cause the company to sel! its assets.

Further, during the year the company's subsidiary (TRGIL) has incurred a net loss of Rs 1,897.049 million (2008: Rs 2,083.525
million ), The accumulated losses of the company as at June 30, 2009 amounted to Rs 1,927.768 million (2008:Rs 2,690.475
milhon).

The management is confident that:

it will be able ro continue as a going concern as the company estimates that positive cash flows shall be generated in the
future from its subsidiary {TRGIL); and

AlG investors would continue with their investment in preference shares of TRGIL and shall not exercise the aforementionad
option available to it in the forseeable future.

Accordingly, these financial statements have been prepared under the 'going concern' assumption

TRG PAKISTAN LTD.

39



CASH FLOW STATEMENT

TRG PAKISTAN LTD.

June 34, June 30,
2009 2008
Mote
(Rupees in thousand)
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash generated from / (utitised) in operations 21 4,444 (11,968)
Markup income received 101 1,01
Refund of long term deposit 297
Finance charges paid on assets subject to finance lease {103) (19)
Net cash generated from / {used in) operating actiyities 4,139 {974)
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
i

Purchase of fixed assets (114)
Sales proceeds on disposal of a fixed asset 62 -
Ner cash used in investing activities (52) %
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayment of liabilities against assets subject to finance lease (604) | (3,075)
Dividend paid {2,642) :
Net cash used in financing activities (3.246) 3.075)
Met increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents ,441 (4,051)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 1176 6,231
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year I{) 3,617 ) 1174

The annexed notes from 1 1o 28 form an integral part of these financial statements.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

v hiel Executive Dfficer Director 3 a



FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Balance as at June 30, 2007

Loss for the year

Conversion of class ‘B' shares into class 'A'

Currency translanion difference

Balance as at june 30, 2008

Profit for the year

interim diyidend paid for the year

ended une 30, 2009 (e Re 0.01 Per share (note 22)

Currency transiation difference

Balance as at June 30, 2009

The annexed notes from | to 28 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Chief Executive Officer

TRG PAKISTAN LTD.

|ssued, subscribed and paid-up capital (apital reserve Revenue reserve Total
Class A Class ‘B’ Total Foreign exchange Accumulated
trans|ation reserve losses
----------------------------- {Rupees in thousand) - - - --
3,133,907 120,000 3,853,907 51,980 (240,623) 3,665,264
- - (2,449,852} (2,449,852}
120,000 (120,000)
= . 249,438 249,438
3,853,%07 - 3,853,907 301,418 _(2,69114?5} | 1,464,850
- - 1663126 766,326
- (3,619} (3,619)
- 281,501 281,501
3,853,907 - 3,833,907 582,919 (1.927,768} _. 2,509,058
Director 37



PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

TRG PAKISTAN LTD

June 30, June 30,
2009 2008
Note
(Rupees in thousand)
Revenue 5 28,915
Other operating expenses 14 {19,850)
Profit / (loss) from aperations 9,065
Reversal of impairment / {impairment charge) an fnvestment in a subsidiary 5 174,133
Other charges |7 (16,786)
Ocher income I8 17
Finance cost 19 (103)
Profic / (loss) for the year 166,326
Earntngs / {loss) per share - basic (Rupees) 20 .99

I

The annexed notes from | to 28 form an integral part of these financial statements.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Chief Executive Officer Director 36



TRG PAKISTAN LTD.

june 30, June 30,
1009 2008
Note
NON CURRENT ASSETS (Rupees in thousand)
Property, plant and equipment 3 1,800
Long term investment 5 2532517
Long term deposits b 183
1,534,500
CURRENT ASSETS
Advance to a related party 7 6,165
Prepayments 165
Accrued markup B 3137
Other receivables 9 831
Advance income tax 1198
Cash and bank balances 10 3.617
15,113
1,549,613
SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Authorised share capital [ 7,330,000
|ssued, subscribed and paid-up capital i 3,853,907
(apital raserve 582,919
Revenue reserve (1.927,768)
2,509,058
MON CURRENT LIABILITIES
Lizbility against asset subject to finance lease |2 566
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Current maturity of liability against asset subject to finance lease |12 305
Accrued and other lizbilities 13 21,589
Payable to related parties - current account 14 12,095 5E 8k
39,989 LEE
2549613

The annexed netes from | to 28 farm an integral part of these financial statements.

AS AT JUNE 30, 2009

Chief Executive Officer Director 35



AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

(d)  inour opinion zakat deductible at source under the Takat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 was deducted by the Company
and deposited in the Central Zakat Fund established under section 7 of that Ordinance:

2. Without qualifying our opinion we draw attention t0 note |.5 to the annexed financial statements which states that

effective October 4, 2008 the preference shareholders of its subsidiary The Resource Group Interpational Limited, Bermuda
(TRGIL), have the right to force liquidation of TRGIL's assets or to require the TRGIL's ordinary shares 1o be sold. However, the
management is confident that the company will be able to continue as a going concern as the preference shareholders of TRGIL
are expected to continue with their investment in the preference share of TRGIL. Accordingly, the financial statements have
been prepared under the ‘gaing concern’ assumption.

Karach A. F. Ferguson & Co.
Dated: Gctober 30, 2009 Chartered Accountants
Aucit Engagement Partner: Saad Kaliya

TRG PAKISTAN LTL
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AULIIURY nerunt 1w ine MLV eEns

Auditors’ Report To The Members

We have audited the annexed balance sheet of TRG Pakistan Limited as at June 30, 2009 and the related profit and loss account,
statement of changes in equity and cash flow statement together with the notes forming part thereo, for the year then ended and we
state that we have abtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for
the purposes of cur audit.

Itis the respansibility of the company’s management ta establish and maintain a system of internal control, and prepare and present
the above said statements in conformity with the approved accounting standards and the requirements of the Companies Ordinance,
1984. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these statements based on our audit

We conducted our audit in accordance with the auditing standards as applicable in Pakistan. These standards require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the above said statements are free of any material misstatement
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the above said statements. An audit
als includes assessing the accounting policies and significant estimates made by management, as well as, evaluating the overall
presentation of the above said statements. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion and, after due
verification, we report that-

. (a) in our opinion, proper bocks of account have been kept by the company as required by the Companjes
Ordinance, [984;

(b)  in our opinion-

(i) the balance sheet and profit and loss account together with the notes thereon have been drawn up In
conformity with the Companies Ordinance, 1984, and are in agreement with the books of account and
are further in accordance with accounting policies consistently applied;

(i) the expenditure incurred during the year was for the purpose of the company’s bustness; and

(i} the business conducted, investment made and the expenditure incurred during the year were in accordance with
the objects of the company,

(¢)  inour opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the balance sheet, profit
and foss account, statement of changes in equity and cash flow statement together with the notes forming part thereol
conform with approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan, and, give the information required by the
Companies Ordinance, 1984, in the manner so required and, respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the
company’s affairs as at June 30, 2009 and the profit, its changes in equity and cash flows for the year then ended; and

R  TRG PAKISTAN LTD.
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STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended June 30, 2009






HISTORICAL
FINANCIAL
INFORMATION

2009
Revenye 18,915
Expenses 131411
Net Loss 166,326
Basic EPS .99
Diluted EPS -
Non - Current Assets 2,534,500
Current Assets 15,113
Sharecapital and Reserves 1,509,058
Nor - Current Liabilities 566
Current Liabilities 39 989
Dividend 0.0
Market share price .35
Number of Employees 4

Number of Consolidating Subsidiaries 22

2008

2,445
(2,452,297
(2,449 852)

(6.36)

1475975
14 464
464,850

35,589

6.25

1
1

2007

8,300
(59,334)
(51,034)

(0.10)

3,561,889
33,720
3,566,394

29.21%

16.4

5
5

2006

29,340
(165,152)
(135,912)

(0.56)

3,586,836
14,265
1,176,636
3,069
1,481,396

10.05

4
6

2005

20,201

(23,191

(2,990)
(0.01)

2,812 431
53,196
2,314,917
2,191
541519

10.1

3
8

2004

17,661
(73,584)
(55.923)

(0.55)

960,939
13,906
615,553
131
358,561

11.25

3
5

2003

2,153

(44,406

(41,653)
(2.42)

119,746
553,861
658,636

14,971

16.45

)
2

2%



DETAILS OF
PATTERN OF
SHAREHOLDING

A5 PER REQUIREMENTS OF CODE GF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of Holding in the shares by
Directors, CEO, CFO, Company Secretary
and their spouses and minor children

MR. MUHAMMAD ZIAULLAH KHAN CHIST)
MR. MUHAMMAD ALI |AMEEL

MR. RAFIQ DOSSANI

MR. JOHN LEONE

Designation
Chairman and CEQ

Director
Director

Director

Opening
balance
July |, 2008

10,684,034
8,863,589
3
}

Closing
balance
June 30, 2009

10,684,034
8,863,589
3

3
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DETAILS OF

PATTERN OF
SHAREHOLDING

AS PER REQUIREMENTS OF CODE QF CORPORATE GOYERNANCE

Banks, Development Finance Institutions, Non-Banking Finance

Institutions, Insurance Companies, Modarabas, Brokerage House Number of
and Mutual Funds shares held
§.1, SECURITIES (PRIVATE) LIMITED 2,500
NCC-SQUARING-UP ACCOUNT 2,500
TRUSTEE OVERSEAS PAKISTANIS PENSION TRUST 2,195
AMI SECURITIES (PYT) LIMITED 2,000
S.ZSECURITIES { PVT ) LTD 2,000
STOCK YISION (PVT.) LTD., 2,000
DR. ARSLAN RATAQUE SECURITIES 1,500
AL-HAQ SECURITIES (PYT} LTD., 1,500
IMPERIAL INYESTMENT (PYT} LTD. 000
D.S.INDUSTRIES LTD |, 000
TARIQ SAYEED SECURITIES (PYT) LIMITED 1,000
PRUDENTIAL SECURITIES LIMITED 534
EXCEL INSURANCE CO.LTD. 500
BLACK STONE EQUITIES (PRIVATE) LIMITED 500
AKD SECURITIES LIMITED - AKD TRADE 500
ESCORTS INVESTMENT BANK LIMITED 217
THE KARACHI STOCK EXCHANGE (G) LIMITED 100
88,106,052
CATEGORIES
Shareholders Holding 10% or Number of Yoting
more voting interest shares held interest

INTERNATIONAL FINANCE CORPORATION 39,190,665 14.32%



DETAILS OF
PATTERN OF
SHAREHOLDING

A5 PER REQUIREMENTS OF CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Banks, Development Finance Institutions, Non-Banking Finance

Institutions, Insurance Companies, Modarabas, Brokerage House Number of
and Mutual Funds shares held
SARDAR MOHAMMAD ASHRAF D BALUCH PYT. LTD 12,000
AFIC SECURITIES {PRIVATE) LIMITED 12,000
UNITED EQUITIES (SMC-PYT) LTD. 2,000
PROGRESSIVE INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT (PVT) LTD 11,500
BABA EQUITIES (PYT) LTD. 1,000
FIRST EQUITY MODARABA 10,000
B.EMODARABA 10,000
TRUSTEES MOGSA LAWAI FOUNDATION 10,000
BULK MANAGEMENT PAKISTAN (PYT.) LTD. 10,000
ICIL {PYT) LIMITED. 1€,000
GUARDIAN SECURITIES (PYT) LIMITED 10,000
PACE INVESTMENT & SEC (P¥T.) LD 10,000
AMIN FEROZ & CO (PRIVATE) LIMITED 10,000
5.2, SECURITIES (PRIVATE) LIMITED 10,000
HK SECURITIES (PYT) LTD. 9500
INVEST CAPITAL INVESTMENT BANK LIMITED 1,000
VALUE STOCK SECURITIES PRIVATE LIMITED 6,500
MIAN MOHAMMED AKRAM SECURITIES (P¥T) LIMITED 6,000
EACEL SECURITIES (PYT.) LTD. 5,300
INYEST FORUM (SMC-PVT.) LIMITED 5,000
SAT SECURITIES (PYT.) LTD. 5,000
TRUSTEES ARTAL RESTAURANTS INT'L EMP PF 5,000
IMGC GLOBAL (PVT.) LIMITED 5,000
QXFGRD KRITTING MILLS (PVT) LTD 5,000
MAM SECURITIES PYT LTD 5,000
ADEEL & NADEEM SECURITIES (PYT) LTD. 5,000
PASHA SECURITIES (PYT) LTD. 5,000
SETHI SECURITIES (SMC-PYT) LTD. 5,000
MONEY LINE SECURITIES (PYT.) LTD 4,000
FAIR EDGE SECURITIES (PYT) LTD 4,000
KHAWAJA SECURITIES (PYT.) LIMITED 4,000
RAHAT SECURITIES LIMITED 3,000
ISLAMABAD STOCK EXCHANGE (G) LIMITED 3,000

MUHAMMAD AHMED NADEEM SECURITIES 3,000



DETAILS OF

PATTERN OF
SHAREHOLDING

o0 7R e PRHENTS OF CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Banks, Development Finance Institutions, Non-Banking Finance

Institutions, Insurance Companies, Modarabas, Brokerage House Number of
and Mutual Funds shares held
INVESTRFORUM (SHC-PYT) LIMITED 50,500
PWR-1057 SARHAD RURAL SUPPORT PROGRAMME 50,000
TRUSTEES [FIM SYSTEMS (PVT) LIMITED 50,000
FAKISTAN MOLASSES COMPANY (PVT.) LIMITED 50,400
TRUSTEES NESTLE PAKISTAN LTD 50,000
LUINSTED CAPYTAL SECURITIES PVT. LTD. 46,500
f.4H.5.0. SECURITES (PYE) LTD. 44 000
5 UK MASTER SECURITIES (PRIVATE) LTD. 43,500
[ 5RIBSONS (PVE) LTD. 40 000
T4 - TLCH SYSTEMS (PVT) LTD 3:.600
+H CECURETIES (PYT) LIMITED. 33,0
AMER SECURITIES (PYT) LTD 3. wil)
S A INDUSTRIES (PYT) LIMITED 1,000
G35 EQUITIES (PVT) LIMITED i0..50
i~ N SECURITIES (PYT) LTD. 13,00
SEMERAL INYESTMENT & SECURITIES (PVT) LTD 20 500
AN SECURITIES (PYTY LTD P v
340K ALFALAH LIMITED 43,0
SAL SECURITIES ( PYT 3 LIMITED 25.000
TRUSTEE CHERAT CEMENT CO.ATD.EMP.PRO.END 25,000
SAWA SECURITIES (P¥T) LTD. 25,000
TRUSTEES OF OVERSEAS PAKISTANI PENSION 25,000
GENERAL INVEST. & SECURITIES (PVT) LTD, 23,500
BEAMING INYEST & SECURITEES(PYT.) LTD. 22,996
COC - TRUSTEE FIRST DAWOOD MUTUAL FUND 20,500
AL-ZAMIN LEASING CORPORATION LIMITED 20,000
STOCK MASTER SECURITIES (PVT.) LTD 20,000
FAIR EDGE SECURITIES (PRIVATE) LIMITED 17,000
DURVESH SECURITIES (PYT) LTD 16,500
STOCK MASTER SECURITIES (PRIVATE) LIMITED 15,500
IMPERIAL INVESTMENTS (PYT) LIMITED 15,500
AMCAP SECURITIES (P¥T) LTD 15,000
H.5.2. SECURITIES (PRIVATE) LIMITED 13,500
ZHY SECURITIES (PYT) LIMITED 13,000



DETAILS OF
PATTERN OF
SHAREHOLDING

A5 PER REQUIREMENTS OF CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Banks, Development Finance Institutions, Non-Banking Finance

Institutions, Insurance Companies, Modarabas, Brokerage House Number of
and Mutual Funds shares held
M.R.A. SECURITIES (PVT) LIMITED 200,600
DOSSLANI'S SECURITIES (PYT) LIMITED 174,000
AW SECURITIES (SMC-PRIVATE) LIMITED. 172,000
AZEE SECURITIES (PRIVATE) LIMITED 158,003
ORLX INVESTMENT BANK PAKISTAN LIMITED 150,000
TRUSTEE MAYMAR HOUSING SERVICES LIMITED 150,000
FIRST NATIONAL EQUITIES LIMITED 150,000
CAPITAL VISION SECURITIES (P¥T) LTD. 149,200
ESCORTS INVESTMENT BANK LIMITED 147,500
MAK SECURITIES {PYT.) LID. 147 000
YALUE STOCK SECURITIES (PYT.) LIMITED 136,000
PROGRESIVE SECURITIES (PVT) LTD. 119,000
M.R. SECURITIES (SHC-PYT) LTD. 118,000
MEEZAN BANK LIMITED 110,000
HABIB BANK AG ZURICH, DEIRA DUBAI 102,000
FIRST ALNOOR MODARABA 100,000
AL-TAMIN LEASING MODARABA 100,000
ALI HUSAIN RAJABALI LTD 100,000
ASHIANA COTTON PRODUCTS LTD 100,000
M/5 S, FAZALILAHI & SONS (PVT) LTD 100,000
M/5 IHSAN INDUSTRIES (PYT) LIMITED 100,000
HABIB SUGAR MALLS LTD 100,000
HH MISBAH SECURITIES (PRIVATE) LIMITED 100,000
[EPHYR TEATILES LIMITED 100,000
MAHA SECURITIES (PVT.) LIMITED 100,000
GMI CAPITAL SECURITIES (PYT) LTD. 100,000
EXCEL SECURITIES (PRIVATE) LIMITED 95,500
HIGHLINK CAPITAL {PYT) LTD 88,000
SAT SECURITIES ( PYT) LTD 87,500
FIRST IMROI MODARABA 85,000
HABIB INSURANCE CO.LIMITED 80,000
CAPITAL VISION SECURITIES (PYT) LTD 72,500
FAIR DEAL SECURITIES (PYT) LTD 65,500
KSR STOCK BROKERAGE (PYT) LTD. 63,000
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DETAILS OF
PATTERN OF
SHAREHOLDING

A PER REQUIREMENTS OF CODE OF CORPORATE GOYERNANCE

Banks, Development Finance Institutions, Non-Banking Finance

Institutions, Insurance Companies, Modarabas, Brokerage House Number of
and Mutual Funds shares held
HABIB BANK LIMITED-TREASURY DIVISION 16,017,000
FAYSAL BANK LIMITED 11,954,000
UNITED BANK LIMITED-STRATEGIC PORTFOLIO (0,071,500
ARIF HABIB SECURITES LIMITED 1,400,000
BHAYANI SECURITIES (PYT) LTD. 6,000,500
SAUDI PAK INV. CO. 5,568,500
MUHAMMAD ANAF KAPADIA SECURITIES 4,521,000
SILKBANK LIMITED 2139925
UNITED BANK LIMITED - TRADING PORTFOLIQ) 2,500,000
BANK ALFALAH LIMITED 1,873,533
DARSON SECURITIES (PYT) LIMITED 604,738
HUM SECURITIES LIMITED ,328.49%
NATIONAL BANK OF PAKISTAN,TRUSTEE DEPTT. 1,078,741
FIRST DAWOOD INVESTMENT BANK LTD. 1,000,010
AMIN TAI SECURITIES (PRIVATE) LIMITED 1,000,000
FIRST DAWOOD INVESTMENT BANK LIMITED 665,000
(5. SECURITIES & SERVICES (PVT) LID. 722,000
FDIBL TRUSTEE - NAMCO BALANCED FUND 675,000
KAl SECURITIES {PYT) LIMITED 640,000
B & B SECURITIES (PRIVATE) LIMITED 545,000
LIYE SECURITIES LIMITED 543,500
NBP TRUSTEE - NI{U)T (LOC) FUND 507.410
SECURITY LEASING CORPORATION LIMITED 508,000
TIME SECURITIES (PVT.) LTD. 475 500
FIRST PAK MODARABA 410,000
CAPITAL INDUSTRIES (P¥T) LTD 401,000
VALUE STOCK SECURITIES (PYT) LIMITED 375,000
ASLAM SONS (P¥T) LTD 349 000
ACE SECURITIES (PYT.) LIMITED 304,500
FIRST PRUDENTIAL MODARABA 300,000
DARSON SECURITIES (PRIVATE) LIMITED 213,501
WASI SECURITIES (SMC-PVT) 17D, 207,000
CENTURY INSURANCE COMPANY LITD. 200,500
PREMIER INSURANCE LIMITED 200,000

13



PATTERN OF
SHAREHOLDING
AS AT JUNE 30, 2009

Categories of Sharehoiders
As At June 30, 2009

CATEGORIES Shareholders Shareholding Percentage
DIRECTORS, CEO & CHILDREN 8 19,547,629 5.0722
ASSOCIATED COMPANIES 6 46,325,415 12.0204
NIT & ICP | 1,078,741 0.2799
BANKS, DFi & NBF| 18 53,560,685 13.8978
INSURANCE COMPANIES 4 481,000 0.1248
MODARABAS & MUTUAL FUNDS 10 2,217,910 0.5755
GENERAL PUBLIC (LOCAL) 12146 228,774,142 59.3616
GENERAL PUBLIC (FOREIGN) n 2,637,421 0.6844
OTHERS 119 30,665,716 1.9570
FOREIGN COMPANIES | 102,000 0.0265
12390 385,390,665 100.00
Number of
Associated Companies shares held
TRG INYESTMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED 3,186,25¢
INTERNATIONAL FINANCE CORPORATION 19,790,665
LOADS LIMITED 500,000
TRAKKER {PRIVATE) LTD. 48,000
TREET CORPORATION LIMITED 2,100,500
Details of Holding in the shares by |
Directors, CEO, CFO, Company Number of
and their spouses and minor children shares held
MR. MUHAMMAD ZIAULLAH KHAN CHISTHI 10,684,034
MR. MUHAMMAD AL) JAMEEL 8,863,589
MR. RAFIQ DOSSANI 3
MR. JOHN LEONE 3
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PATTERN OF

SHAREHOLDING
AS AT JUNE 30, 2009

NUMBER OF SHARES
No. of $hareholders From To Shares held
: 2995001 3000000 3000000
I 3200001 3205000 3201000
| 3240001 3245000 3141000
I 3380001 3385000 3383500
I 3645001 3650000 34650000
I 3750001 3755000 3150500
I 318500 3790000 3786250
I 4020001 4025000 4024500
I 4320001 4315000 4377060
I 4930001 4935000 4934000
I 5565001 5570000 5568500
I 5195001 5800000 5300000
I 4000001 6005000 6000500
I 71070001 075000 1072678
I 1395001 7400000 1400000
| 8415001 8420000 8419298
! 10070001 10075040 10071500
I 11950001 11955000 1954000
l 1601500] 16020000 16017000
I 397940001 39795000 39790665

{2390 385390665



PATTERN OF

SHAREHOLDING
AS AT |UNE 30, 2009

No. of Shareholders

I
]
I
|
I
I
I
I
I
1
;
I
I
I
I
|
I
I
I
!
I
|
!
:
I
I
I
I
I
I
I

NUMBER OF SHARES

From

120001
130001
770001
195001
855001
860001
895001
900001
960001
$95001
1000001
1005001
107500
110000
150001
1245001
1325001
1405001
1445001
1495001
1605001
1755001
1870001
189500
240001
2200001
2245001
2495001
2510001
2635001
1735001

To

125000
135000
175000
800000
860000
865000
900000
905000
965000
1900000
1005000
1010000
(80000
1105000
1155000
1250000
1330000
1410000
1450000
150000
1610000
1760000
1875000
1900000
2145000
1205000
2250000
2500000
2515000
1640000
1740000

Shares held

122000
1470000
775000
00000
858000
§45000
300000
502500
365000
1000000
1000010
1005500
1078741
1101000
1151000
1250000
1328499
1405500
1450000
1500000
1606788
1758000
1873533
1%00000
2145000
2200500
2250008
2500000
2510356
2639000
11399125
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From

340001
345001
365001
370001
375001
390001
395001
400001
405001
435001
430001
45500
460001
419001
475001
495001
505001
515001
525001
54001
550001
55500
580001
595001
600001
625001
635001
67000
690001
695001
160001

NUMBER OF SHARES

To

345000
350000
370000
375000
380000
395000
400000
405000
410000
430000
435000
460000
465000
475000
480000
500000
510000
520000
530000
545000
555000
560000
585000
600000
605000
630000
640000
615000
695000
1000600
705000

Shares held

686791
043000
370000
375000
1137000
391500
800000
401000
410000
430000
864000
460000
462500
415000
1432500
1500000
1017410
516000
526000
1633500
554000
560000
582840
3000000
605000
630000
1917500
675000
695000
1400000
HE500
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PATTERN OF

SHAREHOLDING
AS AT JUNE 30, 2009

No. of Shareholders
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From

140001
145001
150001
155001
160001
165001
{70001
175001
180001
185001
190001
195004
200001
205001
210001
215001
220001
225001
230001
135001
245001
250001
255001
165001
210001
275001
295001
300004
305001
320004
330001

NUMBER OF SHARES

To

145000
150000
155000
160000
165000
170000
175000
180000
185000
190000
195000
200000
205000
210000
215000
220000
225000
230000
235000
240000
150000
255000
260000
270000
275000
180000
300000
305000
310000
325000
335000

Shares held

853857
3590200
612000
638003
321000
1007500
1391000
713500
918000
366500
580000
4995500
402000
252000
2114509
217500
1573501
460000
926500
471000
1250000
255000
256500
267000
275000
278000
3599000
606500
310000
325000
332000



PATTERN OF

SHAREHOLDING
AS AT JUNE 30, 2009

No. of Shareholders

75
1072
1983
4543
1%06

656
496
189
|80
111
|66
64
24

29

30

26

12

35
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From

|

101
501
100
5001
10001
15001
20001
15001
30001
35001
4600
45001
50001
55001
60001
65001
710001
15001
80001
85001
20001
95001
100001
105001
110001
115001
120001
125001
130001
135001

NUMBER OF SHARES

To

100
500
1000
5000
10000
15000
20000
15000
30000
35000
40000
45000
50000
55000
60000
65000
10000
15000
80000
85000
90000
95000
100000
105000
1§0000
115000
120000
125000
130000
135000
140000

Shares held

1861
526892
1976736
14475446
16274916
8726118
9362220
8937896
5214000
3744000
4145880
1183800
1061042
1547300
2545000
1649700
2207503
1571500
2121700
1337500
1504900
929600
11285500
1765001
1744398
1129000
1189500
1244800
1028200
535000
1107500
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AUDITORY’
REVIEW REPORT

T0 THE MEMBERS ON STATEMENT
OF COMPLIANCE WITH BEST PRACTICES OF
CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

We have reviewed the Statement of Compliance with the best
practices contained in the Code of Corporate Governance for the
year ended June 30, 2009 prepared by the Board of Directors of
TRG Pakistan Limited to comply with the Listing Regulation No. 35
of the Karachi Stock Exchange (Guarantee} Limited where the

company 15 listed.

The responsibility for compliance with the Code of Corporate
Governance is that of the Board of Directors of the company. Our
responsibility 1s to review, to the extent where such compliance can
be objectively verified, whether the Statement of Compliance reflects
the status of the company's compliance with the provisions of the
Code of Corporate Governance and report if it does not. A review
s hmited primarily to inquiries of the company personnel and
review of various documents prepared by the company to comply

with the Code.

As part of our audit of financial statements we are required to
obtain an understanding of the accounting and internai control
systems sufficient to pian the audit and develop an effective audit
approach. We have not carried out any special review of the internal
control system to enable us to express an opinion as to whether
the Board's statement on internal contrel covers all contrels and

the effectiveress of such internal controls.

Karachi;
Dated: Dctober 30, 2009

Further, Sub-Regulation (xiiia) of Listing Regulations 37 (now
Regulation 35) notified by The Karachi Stock Exchange (Guarantee)
Limited vide circular KSE/N-269 dated January 19, 2009 requires
the company to place before the Board of Directars for their
consideration and approval related party transactions distinguishing
between transactions carried out on terms equivalent 1o those that
prevall in arm’s {ength transactions and transactions which are not
executed at arm's length price recn.rding proper justification for
using such alternate pricing mechanism. Further, ali such transactions
are also required to be separately placed before the audit committee.
We are only required to check the approval of the related party
transactions by the Board of Directors and placement of such
transactions before the audit committee, which were done in their
respective meetings held on October 30, 2009. We have not carried
out any procedures to determine whether the related party

transactions were undertaken at arm's length price or not.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which
causes us to believe that the Statement of Compliance does not
appropriately reflect the status of the company's compliance, in
all material respects, with the best practices contained in the Code

of Corperate Governance as applicable to the company for the year
ended June 30, 2009.

A. F. Ferguson & Co.
Chartered Accountants
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15.

6.

Karachi

The Board has fermed an audit committee. It comprises of
three members, two of whom are non-executive directors
including the Chairman of the committee.

The meetings of the audit committee were held during the
three quarters prior to approval of financial results of the
Company. The terms of reference of the committee have
been formed and advised to the committee for compliance.,

The Board has set up an internal audit function for the
Group. Internal audit department has started functioning
across the group.

The statutory auditors of the Company have confirmed that
they have been given a satisfactory rating under the quality
control review programme of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Pakistan, that they ar any of the partners
of the firm, their spouses and miner children do net held
shares of the Company and that the firm and all its partners

Dated: October 30, 2009

19.

20.

1]

are in compliance with International Federation of
Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as adopred
by Institute of Chartered Acceuntants of Pakistan,

The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them
have not been appeinted to provide other services except
in accerdance with the listing regulations and the auditers
have confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in
this regard.

We confirm that all other material principles contained in
the Code have been complied with.

The related party transactions entered during the year
ended June 30th, 2009 have been placed before the audu
committee and approved by the Board of Directors in their
respective meetings held on October 30th, 2009 instead of
each of their meetings held since january 19, 2009

on behalf of the Board of Directors

Director

15



STATEMENT OF
~OMPLIANCE

WITH THE CODE OF
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

This statement 1s being presented to comply with the Code of
(orporate Governance contained in Listing Regulation No. 37 of
Karachi Stock Exehange for the purpase of establishing a framework
of good governance, whereby a listed company is managed in
compliance with the best practices of corporate governance.

The company has applied the principles contained in the Code in
the following manner:

-

The Board comprises nine directors, including the CEQ. The
Company encourages representation of independent non-
executive directors on its board including those representing
minarity interests. At present the Board includes seven non-
executive directors.

The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving
as a director i more than ten listed companies, including
this Company.

All the resident directors of the Company are registered as
taxpayers and none of them has defaulted in payment of
any loan to a banking company, a DFl or an NBFC or, being
a member of a stock exchange, has been declared as a
defaulter by that stock exchange.

(ne casual vacancy occurred in the Board during the year
which has not been filled within the requisite time frame.

The Company has prepared a 'Statement of Ethics and
Business Practices’, which is in the process of being signed
by all the directors and employees of the Company,

The Board has developed a vision/mission statement and
overall corporate strategy, and is in process of finalizing
internal control documentation and significant policies of
the Company.

10.

2.

3.

4.

All the pawers of the Board have been duly exercised and
decisions on material transactions, inciuding appointment
and determination of remuneration and terms and conditions
of employment of the CEQ have been taken by the Board.

The meetings aof the Board were presided over by the
Chairman and the Board met at least once in every quarter.
Notification of all the Board meetings held during the year
were made at least seven days prior to the meetings. Far
certain meetings the supplementary material was circulated
less than seven days in advance of the meetings. The minutes
of the meetings were appropriately recorded. The circulation
of the minutes occurred after the duration of the statutonly
mandated timeframe.

The Board has been kept abreast with the applicable

carporate laws and amendments introduced therein during
the year.

The Board has approved appointments of CFQ and Company
Secretary including their remuneration and terms and
conditions of employment as determined by the CEQ.

The directors’ report for this year has been prepared in
compliance with the requirements of the Code and fully
describes the salient matters required to be disclosed.

The financial statements of the Company were duly endorsed
by CEQ and CFO before approval of the Board.

The directors, CED and executives do not hold any interest
in the shares of the Company other than that disciosed in
the pattern of the shareholding.

Company has complied with all the corporate and financial
reporting requirements of the Code.

i4



Board Meetings during the year

During the year, six meetings of the Board of Directors were held.
Attendance by the Directors was as follows:

Name of Director Meetings

attended

Mr. Muhammad Ziaullah Khan Chishti
Mr. Peter Riepenhausen

Mr. Rafiq Dassani

Mr. Ali Jamee|

Mr. Saeed Iqbal

Mr. Patrick McGinnis

Mr. John Leone

Mr. Ameer Quereshi

Mr. Abu Chowdry™®

Mr. Javed Hassan **

Pt LM O e WM e WMTOLMT R O

*  Including attendance by alternate director
Appropriations

Due to the profit recognized at the level of the stand-alone accounts
of the company, the Directors recommended cash appropriations
of Rupees .01 per share {or Rupees 3.6 million in total) for the
year.

Karachi

October 39, 2009

Earnings per share

The basic loss per share of the company on a censolidated basis
was Rupees (4.58) per share. On a stand-alone basis, the company
recognized earnings per share of Rupees 1.99,

Auditors

The retiring auditers Messers A. F. Fergusons & Co., Chartered
Accountants, being eligible offer themselves for re-appointment.
As required by the Code of Corporate Governance, the Audit
Committee has recommended the appointment of M/s. A. F Fergusons
& Co., Chartered Accountants as auditors till the next Annual General
Meeting.

Shareholding Pattern

A statement showing pattern of shareholding of the Company and
relevant additional information as at june 30, 2009 is included in
this report.

Shareholder Acknowledgement

We are thankful to our shareholders for their continued support
of our unique business madel, and for their trust and confidence
In the management team. From our side, we feel greatly honored
at having been given the opportunity to place Pakistan on the map
In this industry.

by Order of the Board

Muhammad Ziaullah Khan Chishti
Chairman and Chref Executive



discounted cash flow approach continues to be relevant as at |une
3Gth, 2009 and that alternate measures such as investment price
inta TRG International by other third party investars such as EMP
IS not appropriate since those commitments were signed earlier in
the year. Should future residual cash flows increase over and above
the supportable assumptions as at June 30th, 2009, the value of
the investment can be marked up further in future periods.

The reversal of the impairment charge against the investment is
applicable only to the stand alone accounts of TRG Pakistan Limited
and not to its consohdated accounts. As a result, the standalone

accounts of TRG Pakistan Limited reflect a net income of Rupees
167 million.

Matter of Emphasis in Auditors Opinion

TRG Pakistan Limited's auditors, A.F. Fergusons & Company, have
drawn emphasis to possibility of AlG enacting its drag right whereby
it can cause the undertake a complete or partial liquidation of
assets, Including the shares of TRG IL to redeem their investment
of $30 million. TRG Pakistan has not received any notifications
from AlG of its intention to exercise its drag right. Your management
also believes that AIG's continued confidence in the Company despite
the availability of the drag right is testament to the positive outlook
and confidence they have in the Company to be able to deliver
returns far superior to their original investment,

Penalties

Subsequent to the year end, the Company and its Directors were
imposed a penalty on account of the delay in hofding its Annual
General Meeting and the delay in the circulation of the Annua!l
Report to the shareholders. The Company was imposed a penalty

aof Rs. 100,000 and each of the Directors were imposed a penalty
of Rs. 420,000.

Corporate and Financial Reporting Framework

As required by the Code of Corporate Governance, the directors are
pleased to repart the following

a)  The financial statements, prepared by the
management of the Company, present fairly its state
of affairs, the result of its operations, cash flows
and changes in equity,

b)  Proper books of account of the Company
have been maintained.

()  Appropriate accounting policies have been
consistently applied in preparation of financial
statements and accounting estimates are based on
reasonabie and prudent judgment.

d)  International Accounting Standards, as applicable
in Pakistan, have been followed in preparation of
financial statements

e} The board is in the process of finalizing internal
control documentation and significant policies of
the company.

f)  There are no significant doubts upon the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern.

gl There has been no material departure from the best
practices of corporate governance, as detailed in
the listing regulations.

hy  The Directors, CEO, CFD, Company Secretary and
their spouses and minor children did not trade in
shares of the company.

2



which is the difference between EBITDA at the operating subsidiary
level of Rupees 469 million less corporate holding company overhead
of Rupees 667 million (which reflects the continued investment in
business development expenses}. The final component of operating
expenses i$ a substantial non-recurring portion of Rupees 633
million.

The nan-recurring costs of Rupees 633 millien embedded within
the operating cost enveiope require further elaboration. These
costs consist of the following sub-categories:

. Pre-operating expenses related to the emerging businesses
(such as SatMap) of Rupees 471 million, of which the $atMap
refated investment is Rupees 410 million.

» One-time costs related to the final portion of the TRG
Customer Solutions restructuring (such as site shutdown
costs and lease termination costs) of Rupees 50 milljon.

*  Non-cash expenses of Rupees |07 million consisting pnmarily
of write-offs related to the entral Yoice sale and the TRG
Europe investment.

The Company also recognized other income of Rupees 55 million
comprising primarily of a refund of an amount held in escrow since
the time of the Telespectrum acquisition in 2004

As a result, the operating loss before finance and taxation costs for
TRG Pakistan as recognized in our financial statements consists of
Rupees |.465 million.

The finance costs incurred during the year ended June 30th, 2008
amounted ta Rupees 267 miltion, of which Rupees 202 million were
cash interest costs paid by our subsidiaries for their barrowings
and reflect the extremely high borrowing costs in the current credit
markets.

Our taxation expense accrual was Rupees 124 miliion; however,
this expense 15 largely of a non-cash nature at present, arising due
to recognition of deferred tax liabilities. Furthermore, the Company
recorded an expense of Rs. 60 million due to distributions to the
minority shareholder in certain subsidiaries in excess of their iniial
equity Investment.

As a result, the company has reparted a consolidated net loss for
the year ended 2009 of Rupees 1,916 million, of which a loss of
Rupees |,766 million is attributable to the sharehoiders of the
hotding company {TRG Pakistan) and a loss of Rupees 150 million
Is attributable to all the minority shareholders,

TRG Pakistan Limited Stand Alone Financial
Statements

TRG Pakistan Limited essentially serves as a holding company with
minimal operations of its own.

The Company had revenues of approximately Rupees 29 million
consisting mainly of management fees from its TRG International
subsidiary of Rupees 28 million against which 1t recorded operational
expenses of Rupees |9 million associated with maintaining 2
corporate head office to support its listing on the Karachi Stock
Exchange

As explained in Note 5 of the stand alone financial statements of
TRG Pakistan Limited, we have recorded a write-up in the carrying
value of TRG International shares by an amount of Rupees 774
million which is reflected in the income statement as a partial
reversal of the impairment charge of Rupees 2,432 million recognized
in FY2008. This reversal of the impairment charge reflects the
difference between the carrying value of the shares against its fair
value as arrived at per the prescriptions of 1A% 6.

Management has taken the view that the fair value based on the



Current operations

Foilawing the return to significant profitabiliy of TRG-CS by June
1009, your company is now generating record profitability at the
operating subsidiary level, with EBITDA at the subsidiary level
currently at an approximate Rupees 90 million per month run
rate. The holding company overhead (inclusive of the business
development effort) has an expense base of approximately Rupees
45 million per month, resulting in a net EBITDA run rate of Rupees
65 million per month. This figure does not include the negative
margins currently generated by the emerging SatMap operation,
which Is expected to break even towards the end of 2009,

Future Outlook and Strategy

Our focus for FY2010 is twofold - (i) to consolidate the profit
margins from our traditional business subsidiaries, driven mainly
by TRG-C3, and (n) to attain cash breakeven and subsequent
profitabifity at SatMap.

By the end of FY2010, we are targeting attaining subsidiary EBITDA
(excluding SatMap) of Rupees 150 million per month, driven by
deployment of new cantractual wins. This would represent subsidiary
EBITDA margins of 15% of revenues, which would place us in the
higher end of services company profitaibility metrics. With a
holding company overhead of Rupees 30 millien, we would then
recognize & net EBITDA run rate of approximately Rupees 120
million per month.

Assuming breakeven SatMap operations, the above aperational run
rate would generate a monthly net income of approximately Rupees
35 millien per manth. With the SatMap revenue run rate increasing
to Rupees 60 million per manth (based on current signed contracts)
and resulting margins of Rupees 25 million per month, the monthly
net inceme tor TRG Pakistan would increase to Rupees 60 million
per month {or Rupees 700 million per year) by the end of 2010.

Financial Performance:

TRG Pakastan's financial statements consist of the financial statements
of the parent company on a stand alone basis, as well as the
consolidated financial statements of the entire group. As TRG
Pakistan essentially serves as a holding company for all its
investments, the results of our operations are best understood by
reviewing our consolidated financial scatements.

Consolidated Financial Statements:

The subsidiaries and the nature of their businesses are summarized
it Note | to the consolidated financial statements. Of these entities,
1RG Paistan, TRG International and TRG Heldings LLC do not
generate external revenue and their expenses represent the corporate
overhead to support our fund raising, acquisitions and portfolio
management functions.

for the year ended |une 30th, 2009 TRG Pakistan s operating
subsidiaries recorded revenues of TRG Pakistan Rupees |1,147
million, representing a 26% increase against revenues of Rupees
§.84Imillion in the prior year. The increase in revenues in Rupees
1§ significant mainly due to the depreciation of the Rupee against

the U5 dollar, as in.US dollar terms, revenues from FY2008 1o
FY2009 increased by less than 2%.

Against this revenue, TRG's subsidiaries incurred overall operating
expenses (presented as Cost of Service Delivery, Administrative and
General Expenses and Other Charges) of Rs, 12,668 million, Included
in these expenses are non cash recurring expenses of Rupees 509
miliion representing depreciation and amortization charges and
ESOP expenses of Rs. 182 million. OF the remaining expenses of
Rupees (1,977 million, Rupees 11,344 million consist of ongoing
(or recurring) costs at the operating subsidiary leve] resulting i
a recurring operating foss less depreciation, amortization and
Interest at the operating subsidiary level of Rupees 197 million,

10



business development resources at TRG Roldings (our US Corporate
Head office} in anticipation of the successful completion of the
restructuring of TRG-CS. During FY2009, we continued to incur
these business development expenses at a level of Rupees 150 million
aver the year.

As a result of this business development effort, TRG-C3 has been
transformed inte an inbound-dominated business with more stable
revenues with large Fortune 100 clients. Over the course of FY2009,
some of our noteworthy wins / ramps included a Rupees 1.| billion
per year deployment with one of the largest global technology
manufacturers, a Rupees 700 million expansion with one of the
{argest telecemmunications companies in the US that has
subsequently resulted in a new client win with one of the largest
rural telephony providers in the US and a Rupees 5¢0 million
deployment in Manila with one of the largest office preducts
companies in the US. [n addition, we have signed a significant
new contracl totaling Rupees 1.0 billion per year initially (increasing
to Rupees 2.0 millian per year) providing back office and customer
support for one of the top 5 banks in the US. This contract is
currently undergoing deployment.

After successfully transforming the revenue base at our TRG Customer
Solutions subsidiary, our centralized business development team
is broadening its efforts to develop large-scale opportunities at our
other subsidiaries.

Financing

The past financial year was characterized by significant dislocation
in the global credit markets, with credit availabiiity retrenching
dramatically. This development put significant prassure on several
of our subsidiaries that used lines of credit to manage their working
capital, as their existing providers attempted to retrench their
averall exposures. |n the face of an extremely challenging banking
market, we wera able to refinance our line of credit {and replace
our legacy banking provider) for our TRG Customer Solutions and

iSky subsidiaries during the course of the financial year through
a Rupees 1.6 million receivables backed facility, We have also
refinanced our line of credit for our TRG Insurance Solutions
subsidiary in October 2009, as well as arranged a working capital
facility for our Digital Glabe Systems subsidiary.

In other credit market developments, we arranged the
recapitalization of a pertion of our investment in Administrative
Enterprises Inc {our Arizona based third party administrator)
through a cash flow based term loan, closed in December 2008.
This recapitalization has allowed us to fund a portion of our
investment during FY2009 in SatMap without having to cause
shareholder dilution by arranging external venture capital financing.

Operational issues at TRG's UK operations

During the course of FY2009, we experienced a series of client losses
at our operations in the United Kingdom, resulting in negative
margins towards the end of the financial year. We have undertaken
a process of rationalization within our UK operatiens, appointed
a new Managing Director of those operations and have written off
the goodwill recorded in the balance sheet of our UK legal entity.
It is important to place these developments in context - TRG's UK
autsourcing operations are relatively smail in scale, representing
between 4% of Group revenues.

Settlement with Charter Communications

During the course of FY2009 and after a series of prolonged
negotiations, we settled our commercial dispute with Charter
Communications that occurred in FY2008, The dispute resulted
from an extra-contractual termination by Charter of an outsourcing
contract signed with us in late 2007. The settlement consisted of
an upfront cash payment of Rupees 200 miliion, as well as new
contracts signed with our Digital Globe Services and SatMap
operations and the payment of ancther Rupees 200 million in the
form of pre-paid revenues.



we have eight contracts currently signed and under implementation.
In several of these contracts, we need to undergo a pilot / proof of
concept stage (with the initial rellout being limitec to a small
subset of these clients' call center infrastructure). Nevertheless,
the set of clients currently signed on represent a revenue potential
for us (assuming deployment of SatMap across their entire call
center infrastructure) of Rupees 800 million per year at a $0%
plus gross margin.

Transformation of TRG Customer Solutions into
significant profitability

As stated in our recent submissions to you, our largest operating
unit, TRG Customer Solutions underwent a restructuring initiative
in the middle of calendar 2008 after we determined that its current
cost structure did not allaw it to generate our targeted returns.
This decline In perfarmance (as compared to expectations) was
mainiy due to the increased volacility of outbound business {that
represented a majority of TRG-C3's business at the time). Qur
cost restructuring consisted of rationalizing our North Amenican
capadity, phasing out of low margin outbound activity and a very
significant reduction |n overhead expenses at TRG-(S,

The cost rationalization at TRG-CS was completed in August 2008.
Buring the course of the subsequent six to seven months, TRG-CS
underwent 2 period of ramp as it replaced a significant portion of
its volatile outbound-oriented programs with newly-won inbound
business with several large Fortune 100 companses. These ramps
have allowed it to attain an EBITDA jevel of approximately Rupees
d0 miilion per month. It expects this figure to Increase as it
deploys additional new business that it has recently contracted in
the financial services and business services sectors.

Rollout and Ramp of SatMap

For the last two years, we have developed and commercialized our
proprietary SatMap technology product, which we expect to become

a core value driver for the Company going forward. The product
was extensively tested internally during the financial year 2008 at
significant internal cost and then subsequently taken “live” on our
outseurced call center clients during the latter part of 2004.

During the course of FY2009, follewing the commercialization of
the $atMap product, we mtensified our business development efforts
with external clients, resulting in eight signed contracts with large
global institutsonal customers. As a result, we have multiple
Implementations currently underway and have two deployments
currently live. The resubts from our deployments have been extremely
favorable, with clients experiencing sales conversion rate increases
of 20-25% following SatMap implementation. While our technology
has proven itself to be highly successful to our external clients, our
reveniue and deployment ramp on $atMap has been slower than
expected due to the complexity of client infrastructure and the
associated integration and engineering efforts, We now project
that we will have sufficient deployments completed in arder to
caver our SatMap costs by the end of 2009,

Over the course of FY 2009, we invested a total of Rupees 410
millson in the marketing and deployment of SatMap, resulting in
a total of approximately Rupees | 520 million invested since
inception. The $atMap operation is highly scalzble in financial
terms, with gross margins of opver $0%, and a fixed cost base of
Rupees 30 million per month. Upon implementation of the initial
{ pilot phases of the current set of SatMap contracts, we expect to
recognize revenues of Rupees 60 million per month, wath full revenue
potential from these clients {).e. assuming deployment across their
entire call center infrastructure) of Rupees 68 miilion per month.

Hence - assuming no further sales beyond our current set of
clients, we woulld expect a return on invested capital of nearly 20%
(n the first quarter of profitable operations.

New 3ales effort

Starting |anuary 2008, we initiated a significant buildup in strategic



DIRECTORS’
REPORT

Dear Sharehalders,

Your Board of Divectors is pleased to bring you the results for the
year ended June 30th, 2009,

Key Developments in 2009

The year ended June 30th, 2009 was a turnaround year for the
Company as our core call center operations, represented primarily
by our TRG Customer Solutions (TRG-CS) subsidiary, returned to
significant profitability. By the end of the financial year, TRG-CS
nad increased its earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and
amortization (EBITDA) to an annualized level of Rupees | biltion
{or Rupees 80 million per manth), driven by new contracts as well
as enhanced operating efficrencies,

As @ result of the turnaround, the Company has now moved to a
financial position where we are able to generate sufficient margin
from our core operations to cover both our holding company
overhead as well as our angoing investment in our SatMap product.

As the turnaround of TRG-C5 did not fully materialize until the end
of the financial year, the results for FY2009 do not reflect the full
effect of our operating transformation. Nevertheless, they still
represent a sigmbicant shift in performance from the prior year,
with recurring EBITDA from our operating subsidiaries of Rupees
469 million n FY 2009, against a similar figure of minus Rupees
258 million in the prior financial year - or a shift of over Rupees
100 million. During the months of June, July and August 2009,
our annualized recurring subsidiary EBITDA has been approximately
Rupees 1.35 billion, rapresenting a further shift of approximately
Rupees $00 million on an annualized basis from FY 2009 levels,

During this financial year, we continued to undertake significant
one-time investment in twe strategic areas which caused an increase

I our cost base on a non-recurring basis during FY2009. The first
of these was i the rollout and implementation related to our

proprietary SatMap product (that optimally matches agents to
callers in a call center using demographic and psychographic
analysis, substantially increasing sales, cost, and customer
satisfaction performance within a call center). We incurred expenses
of Rupees 410 million over the course of the financial year supporting
our SatMap operation, with cash-flow breakeven targeted towards
the end of 2009. The second was the continuation of our strategic
business development activity over the course of the year, which
has already borne results through the comprehensive replacement
of the volatile outhound book of business within TRG-CS with more
stable, longer-term institutional inbound business. We invested
approxtmately Rupees 150 millien in centralized business
development expenses during FY2009.

Our remaining five operating subsidiaries {i.e. subsidiaries generating
revenues from third parties) performed broadly to plan on a

cumulative basis during the course of the financial year, with
EBITDA of Rupees 399 million.

With the continuing emergence of the global economy from the
current recession, the two core upside drivers of our business are
our core outsourcing business and our SatMap technology business.

Our core outsourcing business has been experiencing significant
institutional growth in recent months (capitalizing on the
restructuring of TRG Customer Solutions) resulting from cost
rationalization efforts by many Global 1000 companies (including
our existing clients) in shifting service delivery to more efficient
third party vendors as well as, more recently, resumption of corporate
spending at large global institutions. We have experienced growth
in our large-scale telecommunications clients and have also signed

* up two key financial services accounts.

Our SatMap technalogy business is currently live with two of the
top five telecommunications providers in Nerth America. In addition,



4. Members are requested to notify any change in their address

immediately.

5. CDC account hotders will further have to follow the under

mentioned guidelines as laid down in Circular No. | dated

|anuary 26, 2000 issued by the Securities and Exchange

Commission of Pakistan.

A. For attending meeting:

(1)

Karachi -

In case of indrviduals, the account holder or the
sub-account holder and / or the person whose
securities are in group account and their registration
details are uploaded as per the regulations, shall
authenticate his / her identity by showing his / her
original National Identity {ard (NiC) at the time of

attending the meeting.

In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors
resolution / power of attorney with specimen
signature of the nominee shall be produced (unless
It hias been provided earlier) at the time of meeting,of

meeting.

November 7, 2009

B. For appointing proxies

()

(it}

(i)

(1v)

(¥)

In case of individuals the account holder or sub-
account holder and / or the person whaose securities
are |n group account and their registration details
are uploaded as per the regulations, shail submit

the prexy form as per the above requirement.

The proxy form shall be witnessed by twe persons
whose names, addresses and NIC numbers shall be

mentioned on the form.

Attested copies of NIC of the beneficial owners and

the praxy shall be furmished with the proxy form.

The proxy shall produce his / her original NIC at the

time of the meeting

In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors’
resolutions / power of attarney with specimen
signature shall be submitted (unless it has been
provided earlier) along with proxy form to the

Company.

By Order of the Board

Asghar Husain

Company Secretary



NOTICE OF
ANNUAL GENERAL
MEETING

Notice Is hereby given that the Seventh Annual General Meeting of
TRG Pakistan Limited (the "Company”} will be held at the Auditorium
of the Institute of Bankers Pakistan, Moulvi Tamizuddin Khan Read,
Karachi on Tuesday, December 01, 2009 at 10:00 a.m. to transact

the following business:

Ordinary Business

To confirm the Minutes of the Sixth Annual General

Meeting of cthe Company held on April IS, 2009.

To receive, consider and adopt the audited financial
statements of the Company together with the Directors’

and Auditors' Reports for the year ended June 30, 2009.

To appoint the Auditors for the ensuing year ending |une

30, 2010 and fix their remuneration.

Notes

The share transfer baoks of the Company wili remain closed
from November 23, 2009 to December 01, 2009 (both days
inclusive}. Transfers received by our registrars, Messrs THK
Associates (Pvt.) Limited, Second Floor, State Life Building
No. 3, Dr. Ziauddin Ahmed Road. Karachi at the close of
business on November 22, 2009 will be treated in time for

the purpase of attending the meeting,

A member entitled to attend, speak and vote at this meeting
is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend, speak, and vote

for him/her. A proxy need not be a member of the Company.

The instrument appointing a proxy and the pawer of attorney,
or other authority under which it is signed, or a notarially
certified copy of such power of attorney must be deposited
at the registered office of the Company at least 48 hours

before the time of the meeting.ing.
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TRG VISION

Ta be the global leader in providing business process

outsourcing services.

TRG MISSION

We aim to be the most efficient provider
of business process outsourcing services by setting

the industry standards for cost and quality of services.

We will grow through acquisition of other business
process outsourcing companies that can benefit from
our expertise, as well as through organic growth
resulting from the strength of our franchise. Qur long
term success will be driven by our relentless focus

on recruiting and developing the most talented pool

of human capital in our industry.
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